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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

RIVADH

KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA
Qp??iia_é:

We have audited the financial statements of Asabian Shield Cmopmzm Insurasice Company, {A Szudi Joint Stock
Campzs‘s 1) (the “Cam;;am”}, which domprise of Sarement of finandial position as &t 31 December 2018 ond the
statements of income, sktement of comprehensive | income, statement of change in sharchelders’ equity and staterent
of cash flows for the year thén ended, and the accompanying notes which form on integral pert of these finansial
stitements.

In gur opinios, the accompenying financial stetements present fairly, in all material respects, the finencial position of

the Company as 2t 31 Decémber 2018, and the results of its Gperations and Its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Interiational Finsncial Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) as modified by Seudi Arabian Monetary
Autharity (“SAMA™ fm' the sceounting of zakat and income 1ax.

Basis of Opinion

We conductad our audit in scoordance with International Standards on Auditing (*15A$™) as endorged Inthe Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Dur responsibilities under fiose siandards are further deseribed in the Auditors’ R“*@pﬂn&lbﬁiilﬁs for
the Audi: of the Finandial Sutetnents section of bur report. 'We are independent of the Company I zecordance with
the professional vode of s‘:@#d&ct and ethu:s, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia that ars Televant o our audit
of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our othér ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requ;:ewzents We believe that the audh evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our fpinion:

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professiona! judgment, wers of most szgmﬁcaﬁce in gur audit of the
finaneial smtements of the coment yesr. These maticrs were addressed in the contea! of pur audit of the Bnancial
stateménts 25 2 whole, and in forming oty opinien thereon, and we do not provide s séparats opinion on these mattars.
For matler below, 2 ée:w*sgmn of haw our a6dit addressed the matier provided in that context:



INDEPENDENT AU'BETORS’ REP@%‘E‘ {(Continped)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARABIAN SHIELD COUPER ATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A BAUDI JOINT §Tﬁ€§{ COMPANY)

Key Audii Matters (Continied)

Key. auﬁﬁ maﬁer

Va!zw&bﬁ of ‘phimate cim fzbilities orising from
mszmmce Cﬂﬂf?ﬁ{.‘ﬁ

Asat 31 I}ecemhez' 2018, Gmsaaé:ag claims including claims '
mc‘armd bt nﬁt reparﬁad (IENR} smﬁmteﬁ o Saaé; Riyals

367. 85 mxll:sm Bs re’gm‘#:d in Botz
statem@ms

23 o ﬂ*e £ nmcsai

Iﬁ'v@ﬂf&s
2 s:gz:;ﬁc‘.ﬁz degree af jt.égmem. The imsznes are based on
the “Emt«esﬂmsse of uk;mate cost of aﬂ cia.ms ;ucmd ba:‘ oot

seftled pt o given date,” ’&?’&ihﬁ' repartad or m::% mgeth*‘r with

ﬁzﬂ relaz.é c]alms i:andimg costs.

In partscalar, est:ma{es of EBN!{ and the use of acmar;a! and
s%atzsrcal pmjeciwas mwﬁw sxgzsmzam j&ég:zzsat Arangeof

acmanai meii:cés are useé by ﬁm aeteary to determine these -

te;chmcai rﬁmes Und”rlymg lheaa meti;mis are s wmbe: of
&saplzcst o - 1mg¥sz assumytmns raiazmg 1o the espected
s&ttimcst amount and settlement paterms of claims.

We cmsﬁeré:& this 2y 2 key audit matter since use of
maﬂagerﬁeat asm.m;%sens aad mdgﬁmems could result in
material over 7 understetement of f the Comipany’s profitability.

The Company’s éw!asures about the significant corouwnting
paizaes af the above nientionced key pudic matter aré included
ist note 4 to the firancial siatemants.

W evaiuatad Ehe wmpﬁi&g

How our audi¢ addressed the key audit matter

We Bﬁéeﬁ.wﬁé and ¢valoated ka.y sontrols grovnd the
claims, handlmg 20d mmﬁ:&i TEEETVE ée%tmg pr{}s:sﬁses of
tha Cempany'iaé} g camuleimesa ‘and m:ctmﬁy of
cia;mg data used in tnbﬂs aﬁtmnﬁ’f reserving pm«.m

ca;;abﬂmes and Q%g&ﬁn'ﬂty
of the ‘minagement’s expert - by exaszamxﬁg ti;ar

' pmfe:mmat qual;ﬁsaawss and eme*wsizes

in ﬂb&&mmg su"ﬁcwm audit evidence to assess the integrity
of data used a3 inpuis into the ama&m‘i whaisoas, wg testad
on samp]e ‘basis, ‘the completeness and. ACCURACY of
undﬁ:!ymg claims data utilized by the ﬂsn;}aay § actary

. iz estimating the IBNR by wmpamg it to Bccounting

records,

in onder o assess mmﬁ*ﬁm@m ] meﬁhaén!&&zes and
assmp%z(sﬁs, we were assisted by our actusry speszalzst to
understand and evaluate the Compeny's actuarial practices

Cand the iechszml “feserves established. in m}er 1o obiain

mmﬁrrt over. the Cem 2ny's actuarisl mpﬂft, vur mtﬂma}

schuary pﬂrﬁsmeﬁ the f&ﬂsw&ng

- i;w}mt%‘ w%-mez. the Company's actearial
tiethodalogics were consistent with those used in the
indostry aed with prior p@nsﬁs

- Assessed key nctuarial bssumptions including claims
retfos, and expected” frequency and sgverity of f claims,
We sesessed fhess 2ssumptions by comparing them
with our’ expec‘mmm«, bosed oo the Company™s
histdrical expbiimncy, cuvrent trends and our Swn
industry knowledge,

- Reviewed the appropristecess of the caloulation
methods e 2pproach along with the dssimptions
used and seasiivities o the key assuniptions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARABIAN EHIELD COOFERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDT JIOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Other information included in the Commany's 2018 Annual Revort

The Board of Directors of the Cam;ﬁnv {the i}zres%az‘s} are responsible for the other information in the Company’s
annual report. Other. ;ziﬁ}“mz:;.m consists of theinfoemation included in the mepary‘s 2018 snnval repot, other thag
the financial statements end aur euditors’ report therson. The annual report is expecied to be made availehic to us 2fier
the date of this auditors® report

Our ppinion on the finasclal statements does not cover the ofher information and we do not and will not exprass any
form of assurance conctugion ‘therean.

In connsetion with our sudit of the finencial satements, our responsibility i3 to rexd the dther nfornpmtion identified
aboveand, in dmzsg 5o, consider wiﬂeehe— the ether information Is materially inconsistent with the finescis) stotements
or our knowledge ahiined iathe audit, or othervise appears o be matérially misstated,

When weread the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are reguired to
commvnicate the matter to those charged with govemmance.

Resmmi_biﬁﬁe& of the E}Ezecmrs znd Those Charped with Governapce fof the Anancie] sialements

The directors are responsible for the préparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS a5 modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax, the ap’phgab%a requircments of the Reguletions
for Companies, in the' ngéfm 6f Saudi Ambis and the {Iimpan} *s By-laws and for such intemal control as the
Drectors deiprmines is necessary 0 m:abie ihe preparmtion of financial saiements thet ere fee from material
misstatemant, Whethir due 1o frand or eftor,

In pzﬁparzszg the finantial statements, the Directors ave responsible for assessing the {?ampar} *s ability o toniinue
25 a going concerm, disslesing, a3 applicable, matters rﬂ*lateé to going concern u!’}d using the going condern basis of
secaimting valess the Directors either intend to Yiquidate the Company of to cease operations, or have no realistis
aleraative but to do 5o

Those charged with governance ere responsible for oversceing the Company's fiancial repofiing process.
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INDEPENDENT AUBITORS REPORT {Contipust)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK. QG’&PA&%’)

Avuditors’ vesp _énfs-ifxfi}ﬁes for the audit of the financial statements

Our th&:thes are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whother the financizl statements as a whole are free from
miaterial misdatement, whether. due to fraud or ervor, ead o fesut an auditors’ report that incledes owr opinion.
Reasonable gssurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a gmisan'ee that an asdit mn&xwd in' accopdunce with
International Standatdson Auditing “ISAs™as md@mﬂ in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabig will always detect & material
misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considercd material i, individuzlly
or'in the aguregate, ﬁzey could reazonably be expected to infleence the economic declsions of users taken o the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an sudit in eccordance with International Standards on Auditing (*18As™) as endorsed in the Kzngdﬂm of
Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment ehd maintain professional siepticisia throughout the audit, We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterient of the finuncial statedents, whether due w freud or emror,
design and perfom audit ;m-mdures :es?cms:w to thase risks, and obtin audit evidence that is sufficient and
a;:pmpnate to provide s basls for sur opinfon. The risk of not derecting 2 material misstatersent resulring from fraud
is higher then for one resilting from erron, o3 frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentions! omissions,
misrepresentations, or the ovérride of internal contvols.

s Obwin 2n understanding of internal controls relevant 1o the audit in order to deaig'x audit procedures that ars
appropriate in the éimimstances, bul not for the purpose of expn,ssmg an opinion on the effectivensss of the
Company’s internal controls.

e Evaluale the appropriateness of sccounting polices used and fie reasonableness of zccounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Direclors.

= Conclude on the appropristeness of the Direciors” use of the golng concern basis of accounting 2nd, based on the
audit gvidence obtained, whethér 2 matérial sm.,es";azsty gkists related to evenis or f:"*ﬁdﬁx}ﬁ‘i ihat may cast
szg’uﬁs:an% :,Emsb! on the Company’s gbility fo continue 25 8 going concern. I we @i}r}du&e that & zaterial unoerntainty
gxists, we are required io draw atrention in our auditors’ repor Tt the related disclosured in the finmoial statemenls
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinioa. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidente
obtained up 1o the date of pur 2uditors report. However, future events or conditions may csuse the Company to
¢2ast 10 contnué 83 & going coneem.

= Evaludfe fhe overall presentation, structure sed content of the finenciel stafemens, xméuémg the disclosizes, and
%he%%sér fhe financial swiements refresent the underlying transactions and events in & manner tha: schioves falr
presentation,

We comtenicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the pleaned scope and thning
of the audit and sighificant audit § ndings, mch.dmg any significant éﬂ*}' clencies in mmmal% contrels that we ientify
during our audis. Wealse provide those charged with governance withz siatement thal we bave complied with relevant
sthical requirements regarding fndependence, and to communicate with them all Pia*:armrps ‘and oiher matters that
may feasonably be thoupht to besr on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (Continued)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARABIAT SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPARY
£1 SinDi Jﬂiﬁ‘i’i’ ST{}{?K C{)?VIE’&E%’Y)

Axs'ﬁéﬁe}rs?-res@nsib'iﬁﬁes for the sx’s’di@ of %ﬁﬁ finuuclal smﬁeméﬁs {Continuad)

From the matters communicated with those cha;‘g%ﬁ with governance, we Setermine those matiers that were of most
sigrificance in the’ audit of the financizl staterients of the curment yar end are therefore e key audit manters. We
deseribe these matters | i our au&ziﬁﬁ report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure abgui the marer or
when, In Exsremely rare cirdumstances, we determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report besause
the adverse conséquences of doing so would reasonably be éxpecied to autweigh the pubbic interest benefits of such
compuaication.

Report on Izl snd other regulatory veg 'niremwts

Based on the information that has been made available 1o s while performing our andit procedures, nothing bes come
fo our atiention that touses us'to belicve that the Company Is not in compliance with the requivements of E{eizmamm
firr Campa'ms and the Cx}"npany s By-laws with regards to they affect the preparation aad presentation of the financial
statetents.

For Al-Bassam & Cao. Assotialed Accountants

(Allied Accountants) !nd@penéem “rié"abﬂr of Geneve
Group International

P. O, Box 69658 P.0O.Box 80830

Rivadh 11357 Riyadh 11553

E;ingdn??ff Saudi Arabia Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

:{ A Al Bﬂﬁﬁﬁm Hmﬁaé Al Aiﬁ‘ﬁm’biaﬁ

Cmﬁyé Public Accountant Cemﬁeé Public Accountant
License E\Eﬂ 337 {License No. 222
20 March 2019 :
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes 2018 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 430,566 549,956
Short term fixed income deposits 6 81,234 0
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net 8 78,587 38,052
Reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums 17 33,389 40,626
Reinsurers’ share of cutstanding gross claims 23 71,391 58,958
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims incurred but not reported 23 81,748 73,796
Deferred policy acquisition costs 9 7,307 8,044
Deferred withholding tax g 1,584 1,838
Deferred regulators’ levies g 2,829 1,605
Deferred excess of loss expenses 9 0 0
Investments 11 198,901 140,728
Due from related parties ~ net 8 63,674 4,282
Prepaid expenses and other assets 37,333 9,166
Property and equipment - net i3 4,585 4,075
intangible assets — net 14 7,557 2,501
Goodwill 15 46,794 46,754
Statutory deposit 7 30,000 20,000
Accrued income on statutory deposit 7 2,003 1,563
TOTAL ASSETS 1,179,492 1,002,084

The accompanying Notes 1 to 39 form an integral port) ,' Financial Statements,
=l /J/




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {Continued)

Notes 2018 2017
LIABILITIES
Accrued and other liabilities 48,807 52,048
Reinsurers' balances payable 21 10,760 6,026
Unearned gross premiums 17 221,042 155,564
Unearned reinsurance commission 19 6,847 7,987
Outstanding gross claims 23 173,569 104,731
Gross claims incurred but not reported 23 194,280 179,883
Premium deficiency reserve 23 4,800 0
Other technical reserves 23 9,925 8,125
Due to related parties 30 17,098 11,168
Accounts payable 20 8,701 11,949
Withholding tax provision 9 12,227 12,503
Regulators’ levies provision g 1,470 1,048
End-of-service indemnities 5,001 8,441
Policyholders” surplus distribution payable 2,687 11,995
Zakat 25 26,511 21,060
Income tax 25 1,969 3,205
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 7 2,003 1,563
TOTAL LIABILITIES 751,807 597,297
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 26 360,000 200,000
Statutory reserve 27 33,082 48,573
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) 92,327 154,293
Fair value reserve gain / {loss) on investments 11 2,278 1,921
TOTAL EQUITY 427,685 404,787
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,179,492 1,002,084
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 34

The accompanying Notes 1 to 39 form on integral part g

/ . -
e Financiol Statements,
'\ 5 9 g




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000
STATEMENT OF INCOME

Notes 2018 2017
REVENUES
Gross premiums written 16 625,101 593,078
Reinsurance premiums ceded - local (17,491) {11,630}
Reinsurance premiums ceded ~ foreign (152,814) {185,077}
Excess of loss expenses 16 {2,230} {2,103)
Net premiums written 16 452,566 394,268
Change in unearned gross premiums 17 (65,478) 123,307
Change i reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums 17 {7,237} {56,521}
Net premiums earned 16 379,851 461,054
Reinsurance commissions 18 36,838 50,687
Other underwriting income 6,326 4,996
TOTAL REVENUES 423,015 516,737
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid 23 {304,547} (363,245}
Expenses incurred related to clazims )] {0}
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 23 83,212 123,075
Net claims paid {221,385) (246,174}
Changes in outstanding gross claims 23 {68,838) {10,853}
Changes in reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 23 12,433 {1,331}
Changes in gross IBNR 23 {14,397} {16,966)
Changes in reinsurers’ share of gross IBNR 23 7,952 16,815
Net claims incurred {284,235) {258,509)
Premium deficiency reserve 23 {4,900) {0)
Other technical reserves 23 {1,800) (0}
Policy acquisition costs 9 {22,501} {37.637)
Withholding tax g {7,866) {13,148}
Regutators’ levies g {5,890 {6,556)
Other underwriting expenses {6,572) {8,155}
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES {333,764) {324,006)
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME / {LOSS) 89,251 192,731

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 form an integral pajt g
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

STATEMENT OF INCOME (Continued)

OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES)

{Allowance for} / Reversal of doubtful debts
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Commission income on depasits

Dividend investment income

Realized gain / {loss) on investments

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING INCOME / {EXPENSES)

TOTAL INCOME / {LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to Insurance Operations

TOTAL INCOME / {LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ SHAREHOLDERS’ OPERATIONS

Earnings per share (Expressed in SAR per share)
Basic and diluted earnings per share

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total income / {loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / {loss) - Insurance Operations

Other comprehensive income / {loss) — Shareholders’ Operations

Items that are or may be reclassified to statements of income in subsequent years:

Available for sale investments:
Net change in fair vaiue
Net realised amounts transferred to statement of income

Net change in unrealised fair value

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / {LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to Insurance Operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ SHAREHOLDERS' OPERATIONS

The accompanying Notes I to 39 form an integral pavidit

Notes 2018 2017

{6,600} {4,000)

{61,466) {73,458}

(3,428} (6,280}

11,352 5,346

6,399 1,564

11 1,479 267
(52,262) {72,561}

36,989 120,170

1 {2,697) {11,995}

34,292 108,175

28 1.14 3.61

Notes 2018 2017

36,989 120,170

1] 0

11 1,834 2,1R8
i1 {1,479} (267}
355 1,921

37,344 122,091
(2,697) {11,995)

34,647 110,096

L



ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Retained Fair Value
Share Statutory Earnings / Reserve Total
2018 Notes Capital Reserve  (Accumulated gain/{loss) on Equity
Losses) investments
Balance at start of year 200,000 48,573 154,293 1,921 404,787
Total income / {loss) for the year 34,292 34,292
Net change in fair value of investments 11 1,834 1,834
Net realised amounts transferred to statement of income 11 {1,479} {1,479)
Net change in unrealised fair value of investments 355 355
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 34,292 355 34,647
Bonus share 26 100,000 {20,000} {80,000} 8]
Dividend 36 0 g
Zakat charge 25 {10,960) {10,960)
Income tax charge 25 {789) {789}
Transfer to statutory reserve 27 4,509 {4,509} 8]
Balance at end of year 300,000 33,082 92,327 2,276 427,685
Retained Fair Value
Share Statutory Earnings / Reserve Total
2017 Notes Capital Reserve  (Accumulated gain/(loss) on Equity
Losses) investrments
Balance at start of year 200,000 30,033 120,130 ¢ 350,163
Total income / (loss) for the year 108,175 108,175
Net change in fair value of investments 11 2,188 2,188
Net realised amounts transferred to statemnent of income 11 {267) (267}
Net change in unrealised fair value of investments 1,821 1,821
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 108,175 1,921 110,096
Bonus share 26 0 {0} {0} 0
Dividend 36 {40,000) {40,000}
Zakat charge 25 {13,363) (13,363}
Income tax charge 25 {2,109) (2,109)
Transfer to statutory reserve 27 18,540 (18,540) o
Balance at end of year 200,000 48,573 154,253 1,921 404,787

[ ot

The accompanying Notes 1 to 39 form an integral p

1
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit / {loss) for the year 34,292 108,175
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 13 2,015 1,853
Amortization of intangible assets 14 1,411 4,426
{Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment (36} (41}
Allowance for / (Reversal of) doubtful debts 8 6,600 4,000
Provision for withholding tax 9 7,512 10,359
Provision for regulators’ levies 9 7,114 5,871
Provision for end-of-service indemnities 2,891 3,679
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable {36,735) (16,147)
Reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums 17 7,237 56,521
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 23 {12,433) 1,331
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims incurred but not reported 23 (7,952} {16,815}
Deferred policy acquisition costs 737 10,579
Deferred withholding tax 354 2,790
Deferred regulators’ levies {1,224} 685
Deferred excess of loss expenses 0] G
Due from related parties {69,792) {2,575}
Prepaid expenses and other assets {28,167} (468)
Accounts payable (6,346} {1,450}
Policy acquisition cost payable 3,098 332
Policyholders® surplus 2,697 11,995
Accrued and other liabilities {3,242) 17,370
Reinsurers’ balances payable 4,734 {11,493}
Unearned gross premiurms 17 65,478 {123,307}
Unearned reinsurance commission 19 {1,140) {10,868)
Qutstanding gross claims 23 68,838 10,853
Gross claims incurred but not reported 23 14,397 16,966
Premium deficiency reserve 23 4,800 0
Other technical reserves 23 1,800 0
Due to related parties 5,930 775
Payments;
End-of-service indemnities paid {2,331) {1,836)
Withholding tax paid G (7,788) {11,507}
Regulators’ levies paid 9 {6,692) {6,402}
Surplus paid to policyholders {11,995) {11,231}
Zakat paid 25 {5,509} (6,612)
Income tax paid 25 {2,025) (1,412}
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 38,628 46,400

The accompanying Notes 1 to 39 form an integral pa
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Notes 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions of investiments 11 {150,005} {47,795)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 11 133,666 10,020
Realised gain on disposal of investments 11 (1,479) {267}
Additions of short term fixed income deposits 6 {81,234) 0
Additions of property and equipment 13 (2,551} (2,320)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 52 44
Additions of intangible assets 14 (6,467) {2,488}
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 0 o
Increase in statutory deposit 7 {10,000} 0
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities {158,018) {43,306}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid 36 ] {40,000}
Net cash generated from / {used in) financing activities (40,000)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {119,350} (36,906
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 549,956 586,862
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 430,566 549,956
NON-CASH INFORMATION
Change In fair value of investments 355 1,921
Bonus shares issued 100,600 0

The accompanying Notes 1 to 39 form an integ
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI! JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

1. GENERAL

The insurance industry in Saudi Arabia is regulated by the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies
(“Cooperative Insurance Law”) together with the fmplementing Regulations (“implementing Regulations”} promulgated by
Roval Decree No. M32 dated 22 Jumad Thani 1422 corresponding to 21 August 2003. Supervision is under the auspices of the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority ("SAMA" or "Regulator”).

Arabian Shield Cooperative Insurance Company (“Company”} is a Saudi Joint Stock Company incorporated in Riyadh, Saudi
Arabia through Ministerial Resolution issued on 19 May 2007 with Commercial Registration No. 1010234323 issued on 13 June
2007 following on from Royal Decree No. MG0 dated 18 Ramadan 1427 corresponding to 11 October 2006. The Commercial
Registration Certificate was amended with effect from 24 July 2018 to reflect the increase in share capital following the bonus
share issue. The Company was listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange {Tadawul) on 26 June 2007. The registered address of the
head office is as follows: 5* Floor, Cercon Building No. 15, Olaya Street, PO Box 61352, Riyadh 11565, Saudi Arabia.

The principal activities for which the Company was licensed were the conducting of insurance and reinsurance business in
general and medical ctasses in Saudi Arabia in accordance with License No. TMN/6/20079 issued on 11 September 2007 by
SAMA and the License was renewed for three year periods on 10 August 2010, 07 July 2013 and 03 june 2016. SAMA gave
approval to the Company to conduct business in the protection and savings class on 26 April 2018. At the Company’s request,
SAMA approved an amendment to the License to exclude reinsurance business with effect from 30 September 2013,

As per the Articles of Association {"Articles"}, the Company may undertake all activities required to transact cooperative
insurance operations and related activities and to invest its funds. Its principal lines of business include motor, medical,
marine, property, engineering, casualty and protection and savings.

In accordance with the Implementing Regulations, within six months from the date of publication of the Annual Finaacial

Statements each year, the Board of Directors approve the distribution of the surpius from insurance operations as follows:

® The shareholders of the Company receive 90% of the surplus from insurance operations including any surplus from
investment activities of the palicyholders’ invested funds and the policyholders retain the remaining 10%.

®  Any deficit arising on insurance operations is transferred to shareholders’ operations in full,

The Company and its Shareholders own and retain custady of all net assets related to both Insurance Operations and
Shareholders’ Operations and funds are allocated to Insurance Operations as required.

The fiscal year of the Company runs from 1 January to 31 December.

Cooperative insurance operations commenced with effect from 1 January 2009 following acquisition of the insurance portfolio
and related business, assets and liabilities from Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC.

The Ministry of Commerce and Investment implemented the new companies’ regulations with effect from 25 Rajab 1437H
corresponding to 02 May 2016 (“Effective Date”) promulgated by Royal Decree No. M/3 dated 28 Muharram 14374
corresponding to 10 November 2015 ("Companies’ Regulations”). The Companies’ Regulations replace the companies’
regulations promulgated by Royal Decree No. M/6 dated 22 Rabi Al Awwal 1385H corresponding to 20 July 1965 and
supersede all provisions that are inconsistent therewith.

Companies existing as at the Effective Date shall make ail necessary amendments to their Articles to ensure compliance with
the Companies’ Regulations within a period of one year from the Effective Date. As of the date of approval of these Financial
Statements the Company has completed all necessary amendments and is in full compiiance with the Companies’ Regulations.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS”} as modified by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”} for the accounting of zakat and
income tax, which requires adoption of IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {(“IASB”} except for the
application of International Accounting Standard ("IAS") 12 - Income Taxes and IFRIC 21 - Levies so far as these relate to zakat
and income tax.

As per the SAMA Circular No. 381000074519 dated 11 April 2017 and subsequent amendments through certain clarifications
relating to the accounting for zakat and income tax {“SAMA Circular”), effective 01 January 2017, zakat and income tax are fo

be accrued through shareholders equity under retained earnings.




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUD!IOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

3. [INTRODUCTION OF IFRS 8, IFRS 16 AND IFRS 17

In November 2018 IASB proposed a one year deferral of the effective date for IFRS 17 to 01 January 2022 along with a
temporary exemption for insurers to apply IFRS 9 so that hoth IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 will be applied at the same time. The
proposed deferral is subject to public consultation which is expected in 2019.

IFRS 9: Financial instrumenits {including amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts)

fn July 2014, the IASB published iFRS 9 Financial tnstruments which will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The standard incorporates new classification and measurement requirements for financial instruments, the
introduction of an expected credit loss impairment madel which will replace the incurred loss model of [AS 39 and new hedge
accounting requirements.

Under IFRS 9, all financial instruments will be measured at either amortised cost or fair value. The basis of classification will
depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial instruments.

The standard retains most of IAS 39 requirements for financial liabilities except for those designated at fair value through
income statement whereby that part of the fair value changes attributable to own credit is to be recognised in other
comprehensive income instead of the income statement. The hedge accounting requirements are more closely aligned with
risk management practices and follow a more principle based approach.

Temporary exemption from IFRS 9:

In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that address the accounting consequences
of the application of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to the publication of the forthcoming accounting standard for insurance coniracts.

The amendments to IFRS 4 allow two options for insurers regarding adoption of IFRS 9: deferral approach or overlay approach.

The deferral approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 until the earlier of the
effective date of a new insurance contract standard or 01 January 2022. The overlay approach aflows an entity to remove from
profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contracts standard is
applied.

The Company s eligible to and has applied the deferral approach.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 an the Company's Financial Statements will, to a large extent, have to take into account
the interaction with the forthcoming accounting standard for insurance contracts and as such it is not possible to fully assess
the effect of the adoption of IFRS 9,

IFRS 16: Leases

[FRS 16 which relates to feases will apply on-balance sheet accounting for both finance and operating leases thereby
eliminating the dual accounting model allowed under 1A5 17 and will apply to all accounting periods beginning on or after 01
January 2019.

The Company has decided not to adopt IFRS 16 early as would be permitted in certain circumstances and does not expect any
material impacts arising from the future adoption of IFRS 16.

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

in May 2017 the 1ASB published IFRS 17 which applies to annual reporting periods on or after 01 january 2022 and replaces
IFRS 4. The Company has decided not to adopt IFRS 17 early as would be permitted in certain circumstances,

IFRS 17 applies to virtually all insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with insurance benefits and
discretionary participation features.

The Company expects adoption of IFRS 17 to have a material impact on measurement and disclosure of insurance and
reinsurance contracts that will affect the statement of income and statement of financial position.




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS tN SAR '000

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Preparation

The accounting policies, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 are consistent with those used in the preparation of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 and no new or amended accounting policies or accounting standards were adopted by the Company during 2018.

The IFRS standards referred to in Note 3 above have had no material impact on the reported amounts in the Financial
Statements for the current or priar years.

The Financial Statements are prepared under the going concern convention using the accrual basis of accounting. The historical
cost convention is followed except for the measurement at fair value of available for sale investments - see Note 4{r},

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported only when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. Income and expense are not offset unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation
as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies.

Presentation is in Saudi Riyals, the functional currency of the Company. All amounts are derived from Arabic and English
computerised accounting records and except where otherwise indicated are rounded to thousands using the standard
rounding convention,

The statement of financial position is presented in order of lquidity but is not presented using a current / non-current
classification, The table below identifies current and non-current assets and labilities.

Financial Assets:
Current Non-current
Cash and cash equivalents Property and equipment — net
Short term fixed income deposits Intangible assets - net
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net Goodwill
Reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums Statutory deposit
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims Accrued income on statutory deposit
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Deferred withholding tax
Deferred regulators’ levies
Deferred excess of loss expenses
Investments
Due from related parties — net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

e 2 o 8 o
% » 8 & @
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Financial Liabilities:

Current Non-current
Accrued and other liabilities e End-of-service indemnities
Reinsurers' balances payable e Accrued commission income payable to SAMA

Unearned gross premiums
Unearned reinsurance commission
Cutstanding gross claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Premium deficlency reserve

Other technical reserves

Due to related parties

Accounts payable

Withholding tax provision
Regulators’ levies provision
Policyholders’ surplus distribution payable
Zakat

income {ax
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI} JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

As required by the Implementing Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of account for insurance Operations and
Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial information accordingly. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly
attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of expenses from joint operations
is determined by the management and approved by the Board of Directors.

The statements of financial position, statements of income, statements of comprehensive income and statements of cash
flows of the Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations which are presented in Note 39 on pages 61 to 66 of the
Financial Statements have been provided as supplementary financial information to comply with the Implementing
Regulations which require the ciear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Insurance Operations and
the Shareholders’ Operations, Accordingly, the statements of financial position, statements of income, statements of
comprehensive income and statements of cash flows prepared for Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ QOperations
referred to above reflect the assets, liahilities, income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the respective
operations.

In preparing the Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS, the balances and transactions of Insurance Operations are
amalgamated and combined with those of Shareholders’ Operations. interoperation balances, transactions and unrealised
gains or losses, if any, are efiminated in full during amalgamation. The accounting policies adopted for Insurance Operations
and Shareholders’ Operations are uniform for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,

The inclusion of separate information of Insurance Operations in the statements of financial position, statements of income,
statements of comprehensive income, statements of cash flows as well as certain relevant notes to the Financial Statements
represents additional supplementary information required by the implementing Regulations but not required by IFRS.

b) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies, the reported amount of assets and fiabilities, contingent assets and liabilities, resultant
provisions, changes in fair value and the reported amounts of income and expense,

These judgements and estimates are based on the Company’s best knowledge of current events and actions and are
continually evaluated and updated, however future events could result in outcomes requiring material adjustments to the
reported amounts.

It preparing Financial Statements significant judgments made by management in applying the Group’s accounting palicies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty including the risk management policies were the same as those that applied to the
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,

The following judgments and estimates have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised.

Impairment losses on receivables

The Company assesses impairment for receivables that are individually significant and receivables inciuded in a group of
financiat assets with simifar credit risk characteristics. Receivables that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. This assessment
of impairment requires judgment. in making this judgment, the Company establishes if there is objective evidence that all
amounts due may not be collectible in accordance with the original terms of the contract and evaluates credit risk
characteristics that consider past-due status being indicative of the ability to pay all amounts due as per contractual terms.

Insurance contract liabilities
For insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reparting
date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the reporting date.

it can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty and for some type of
policies IBNR claims form a significant part of the liability. The primary technigue adopted by the Company in estimating the
cost of reported and IBNR claims is that of using past claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.

Historical claims development is analysed by underwriting year, accident vear and further analysed by significant business lines
and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjustor
estimates or separately projected to reflect their future gefected development.

1B




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMIOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

fn most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the
assumptions used are those implicit in the historic claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgment is used to assess the extent ta which past trends may not apply in future, (for example to reflect one-off
occurrences, changes in external or ather factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legisiation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated uitimate cost of claims that present the likely outcome from the range
of possible outcomes, taking into account all the uncertainties involved.

in addition a range of technical methaods are used by the Company’s actuaries to independently assess and critically review the
estimates made by the Company.

Prior claims estimates are continually reviewed and adjusted as claims develop,

Insurance contract liabilities are not discounted for the time value of money as substantially all claims are expected to be paid
within one year of the reporting date. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged
or is cancelled.

Impairment of financial instruments

Financial instruments are considered impaired when it is determined there has been a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value relative to cost. This determination requires judgement. In making this judgement factors are considered such as normal
share price volatility, financial status of the investee including cash flow and sector and technology status and development,

Fair value of financial instruments

The falr value of financial instruments is based where possible on quoted prices for marketable securities. The fair value of
commission bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using cammission rates for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of similar
financial instruments or where this cannot be determined is calculated using a variety of valuation techniques. The
assumptions are taken from observable market data where possible and where this is not possible judgment is refied upon to
establish fair values.

¢} Seasonality of operations
There are no seasonal changes that may affect insurance operations of the Company.
d} Currencies

Exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions are used to transiate transactions denominated in foreign currencies to
Saudi Riyals.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting
date.

Resulting gains or losses, both realised and unrealised, are recognised as income or expense.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated,

e} Trade date accounting

All purchases and sales of financial instruments are accounted for at trade date being the date the Company commits to
purchase or sell the instruments,

f} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or afi of a provided amount to be recavered, the recovery is
recognised only when it is believed to be certain.




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

g) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based where possible on quoted prices for marketable securities. The fair value of
commission bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission rates for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of similar
financial instruments or where this cannot be determined is calculated using a variety of valuation techniques. The
assumptions are taken from observable market data where possible and where this is not possible judgment is relied upon to
establish fair values.

h} Impairment of financial instruments

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument or a group of
financial instruments is impaired.

An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the instrument has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the instrument or the group of instruments that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include:

* Significant financtal difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

it becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization:

The disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of financial
instruments since the initial recognition of those instruments, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial instruments in the Company. This could include adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or
debtors in the Company or national or focal econoemic conditions at the country of the issuers that correlate with defaults.

L]

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial instrument exists, the impairment is determined as follows:

e For instruments carried at fair value impairment arises ta the extent significant or prolonged decline in fair value has
occurred.

* For instruments carried at amortized cost impairment arises to the extent discounted estimated future cash flows are
significantly tess than amortized cost.

For debt instruments classified as available for sale the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative ioss measured as
the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognized. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be ohjectively related
to credit events cccurring after the impairment loss was recognized the impairment loss is reversed.

The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement a period of 12 months ar
langer is considered to be prolonged and decline of 30% from original cost is considered to be significant.

The Company considers factors such as market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in bond vields, rating agencies’
assessment, country’s ability to access capital markets and probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering
losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness. The amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative joss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of income and statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments held as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its carrying costs
represents objective evidence of impairment. The impairment loss cannot be reversed through statement of income as long as
the investment continues to be recognised i.e. any increase in fair value after impairment has heen recorded can only be
recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is included in the statement of income under realized gain / {loss} on available for sale investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOURNTS IN SAR ‘000

i} Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment annually or earlier if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss Is recognized for the amaount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash-generating units and cash flows.

i} Derecognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights that
comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold or all the cash flows attributable to
the instrument are passed through to an independent third party and the Company has also transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership.

k} Recognition of premium and commission income
Gross Premiums and Gross Commission Income are recognised as revenue when the insurance palicy is issued.
Ceded Premiums are deducted from Gross Premiums to arrive at Net Premiums.

Gross and Ceded Premiums and Gross Commission Income which relate to cover periods beyond the end of a financial period
are calculated by the Company and reported as Unearned using the following methods;

Marine cargo risks:
Last three months actual period of cover preceding the reporting date.

Engineering construction risks with period of cover greater than one year:
Linearly increasing sums at risk applied to actual period of cover.

Alt other risks;
Pro-rata to actual period of cover,

1) Deferred Costs

Certain costs are deferred on initial recognition and subseguently expensed in direct proportion to income recognition of the
underlying premiums to which they relate.

The costs subject to this policy are:

¢ Policy acguisition costs payable to insurance companies, brokers, agents and employees arising from the writing or
renewing of insurance contracts,

= Withholding taxes levied on foreign payments.

¢ Regulators' jevies.

e  Excess of loss expenses.

s  Claims handling costs payable to third party administrators arising from the processing of claims,

Impairment reviews are conducted regularly and any impairment loss is reflected in the statement of income.
mj Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Insurance coniracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from anather
party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event {the insured event)

adversely affects the policyholders, p
“ i /g W
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime
even if the insurance risk reduces significantly in this period.

Reinsurance contracts, by which the Company cedes insurance risks to reinsurers, are entered into by the Company in the
normal course of business.

Under such contracts the Company agrees to cede part of the underlying premium to the reinsurer and the reinsurer agrees to
pay commission on the ceded premium to the Company and to compensate the Company for losses arising on the underlying
insurance contract,

Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are recognized in the statement of financial position and the statement of
income consistently with the treatment of amounts assaciated with the underlying insurance contracts and in accordance with
the terms of each reinsurance contract.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a reinsurance asset may be impaired.
Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying
amount of a reinsurance asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Reinsurance assets and liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights expire or when the contract is transferred to
another party,

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
n} Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing products or services (a business
segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (a geographic segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors,

o} Events after the reporting date

Adjustments are made to reflect the impact of events occurring between the reporting and publishing dates provided they give
evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date. Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting
date are disclosed but no adjustment is made for their impact.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank current accounts and deposits {including short term highly liguid
investments) with original maturities of three months or less.

q) Fixed income deposits

Short term fixed income deposits are deposits maturing after 3 and before 12 months from the deposit placerment date.

Long term fixed income deposits are deposits maturing mere than 12 months from the deposit placement date.

r} Investments

The Company does not invest in derivatives.

At initial recognition the Company classifies it’s non derivative investments into three categories depending on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired or originated - heid to maturity, fair value through income statement and available for

sale.

At the current reporting date all investments are classified bwthe Company as available for sale.

- = O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Distributions of income for ali three classifications are recognized when the right to receive the income is established. The
income is reported in the statements of income.

Investments are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows and/or substantially all risks and rewards of ownarship
have expired or been transferred.

Held to maturity
Investments ciassified as held to maturity are those with fixed or determinable income and fixed maturities which the
Company has the positive intention and ahility to hold until maturity.

These Iinvestments are initially recognised at cost including any related transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition.

At each reporting date they are remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Valuation impairments are reported in the statements of income.

Valuation gains are reported in the statements of income only to the extent of cumulative impairments previously recognized.
Realised gains and losses arising on derecognition are reported in the statements of income.

Fair value through income statement
Investments classified as fair value through income statement are those acquired with the intention of trading in the near
term.

These investments are initially recognized at fair value with any related transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition charged to the statements of income on acquisition.

At each reporting date they are remeasured at fair value with the resulting unrealized gains or fosses and any impafrment
charges reported in the statements of income.

Realised gains and losses arising on derecognition are reported in the statements of income,

Available for sale
Investments classified as available for sale are those which are not classified as held to maturity or as fair value through
income statement and are acquired with the primary intention of holding for an indefinite period of time but which may
require to be traded sooner in response to 3 need for liquidity or as a result of market changes.

These investments are initially recognised at cost including any related transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition.

At each reporting date they are remeasured at fair value unless they do not have a quoted market price or there is no other
appropriate method from which to derive reliable fair value in which case they remain stated at cost less any impairment.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from a remeasurement at fair value are reported in other comprehensive income and
cumulatively held in a separate equity reserve unless the investment is impaired.

On derecognition of unimpaired investments the cumulative unrealized gains or losses previously reported in other
comprehensive income and held in the separate equity reserve are transferred to and reported in the statements of income.
Realised gains and losses arising on derecognition are reported in the statements of income.

On impairment of investments the impairment charges are reported in the statements of income and the cumulative
unrealized gains or losses previously reported in other comprehensive income and held in the separate equity reserve are
transferred to and reported in the statements of incame.,

Realised gains and losses arising on derecognition are reported in the statements of income.
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Reclassification of available for sale investments

The Company evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell available for sale investments in the near future is still
appropriate. If due to inactive markets the Company is unable to trade such investments it may elect to reclassify if it has the
ability and intention to hold the investments for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the investments meet the definition of loans and receivabies and
the Company has the intention and ability to hold the investments for the foreseeable future or until maturity. Reclassification
to held to maturity is permitted only when the Company has the ability and intention to hold the investment until maturity.

For an investment reclassified out of available for sale category, the fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that investment that has been recognised in equity is amortised to the
statement of income over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate method.

If the investment is subsequently determined to be impaired the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
income.

s) Premlums and reinsurers’ receivables

Premiums receivables are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance contracts less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. Premiums and reinsurer receivabies are initially recognised at inception of the related insurance
coniract measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable, The carrying value of receivables is reviewed for
impairment and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable the impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of income. Receivable balances are derecognised when the Company no longer controls the
contractual rights that comprise the receivable balance which is normally the case when the receivable balance is sold or all
cash flows attributable to the balance are passed through an independent third party. Receivables disclosed in Note 8 fall
under the scope of iFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts.

The Implementing Regulations define the basis for the provision for doubtful receivables based on ageing of receivables from
date of inception of insurance contracts regardiess of any credit terms granted to the insured or reinsurer,

t) Property, equipment and intangible assets

Property, equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Replacement or major refurbishment costs are capitalised when incurred
if it is probable that future economic benefits resulting from incurring the cost will arise and the cost can be measured reliably.
All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of income as they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the useful lives of the assets at the foliowing rates:

Fixed assets Useful life in years
Leasehold fixtures 10

Office furniture i0

Office equipment 10

Motor vehicles 4

IT equipment 4
intangible Assets Useful life in years
IT systems 4

The assets’ residual vaiues and remaining usefu! lives are continually reviewed and adjusted if appropriate.
tmpairment losses are recognised as an expense.

An item of property, equipment or an intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognised as income or expense.




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUD] JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR 000

Capital work-in-progress includes tangible and intangible assets being developed for future use and are not depreciated. When
the assets are commissioned the work-in-progress amount is transferred to the respective asset categories and thereafter
depreciated as set out above with effect from the commissioning date,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are reported in the
statement of income,

u) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is not amortised but subsequent to initial recognition is tested for impairment
annually and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

tmpairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount is less than their carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised.

Impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
v} Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of income on 2 straight-
line hasis over the pericd of the lease,

w) Claims

Claims comprise amounts payable to contract holders, third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and
other recoveries,

in addition ta amounts already paid, claims include estimated provisions determined from loss reports for claims reported but
not settled together with provisions based on the Company’s judgement and prior experience for claims incurred but not
reported {IBNR).

Any differences crystalising between the provisions at the reporting date and subsequent settlements or adjustments to those
provisions are recognised in the statement of income as income or expense as appropriate.

The Company does not discaunt its fiability for unpaid claims as substantially all reported claims are expected to be paid within
one year from occurrence.

While the Company believes that the estimated provisions are adequate, nevertheless, the ultimate liability of the outstanding
claims may be in excess of or less than the provided amounts.

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to subsequently seil assets acquired in settling a claim usually damaged or
salvaged goods and the Company may also have rights to pursue third parties for payment of some or alt claim costs. Estimates
of salvage and subrogation recoveries are included in the measurement of outstanding claims.

x} Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any overall excess of expected claims over unearned premiums
net of deferred acquisition costs. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account
of the return expected to arise on assets reiating to the relevant insurance technical provisions. If that assessment shows that
the carrying amount of the unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the entire deficiency is
immediately recognised and a provision created.

y) Provision for end-of-service henefits

Benefits payable to the employees of the Company at the end of their service are provided for in accordance with the labour
laws of Saudi Arabia.

The cost of this benefit for each employee is charged over their period of employment and provisions are continually re-
assessed and adjusted on the basis of current salary, r tegbenefits and compl -
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On cessation of employment, the entitlement will be paid based upon the employees’ final salary, related benefits and length
of service,

Interim payments may be approved at the Company's discretion for employees with service in excess of 10 years.
The Company has calculated end-of-service liability in accordance with 1AS 19,

No material difference arises between this amount and the liability calculated in accordance with the Labour Laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and accordingly no adjustment was required to the Financial Statements.

z} Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2018 2017
Insurance operations
Bank balances and cash 26,523 15,195
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisition date 226,862 362,223
Total 253,385 377,418
Shareholders’ operations
Bank balances and cash 1,452 748
Depasits maturing within 3 months from the acquisition date 175,689 171,750
Total 177,181 172,538
Combined balances
Bank balances and cash 28,015 15,943
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisition date 402,551 534,013
Total 430,566 549,956

All bank balances and deposits are placed with SAMA reguiated locai banks.

6. SHORT TERM FIXED INCOME DEPOSITS

Short term fixed income deposits maturing after 3 and before 12 months from the deposit placement date are as follows:

2018 2017
insurance operations 81,234 v
Shareholders' operations 0
Total 81,234 ]

Alt bank balances and deposits are placed with SAMA regulated local banks.

7. STATUTORY DEPOSIT
All numbers in this note are stated in Saudi Rival whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.

The Company maintains a deposit of SAR 30,000,000 {31 December 2017 SAR 20,000,000} in a deposit account at The Saudi
British Bank. This deposit was increased during 2018 by SAR 10,000,000 following the bonus share issue detailed in Note 26.
This deposit cannot be withdrawn without SAMA's consazfand the Company does not earn commission from the deposit.

C e (e
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8. PREMIUMS AND REINSURERS' RECEIVABLE — NET

Receivable comprise amounts due from the folowing:

Non related parties 2018 2017
Policyholders 25,680 21,261
Brokers and agents 46,828 8,269
Receivables from reinsurers 12,779 19,022
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — gross 85,287 48,552
Pravision for doubtful receivables {6,700} {10,500)
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net 78,587 38,052
Related parties
Policyholders 75,074 5,282
Provision for doubtful receivables (11,400} (1,000)
Due from related parties — net 63,674 4,282
Movement in the combined provision during the year
Balance at start of year 11,500 7,500
Provided / {Reversal) 6,600 4,000
Written off 0 it
Balance at end of year 18,100 11,500
The ageing of receivables at the end of the year is as follows:
2018 Not Due or Due but not impaired Due and age impaired Total
Impaired  0-30Days 31-90Days 91-180 Days 181-365 Days > 365 Days
Non related parties
Policyholders 10,828 2,623 6,071 1,596 2,755 1,807 25,680
Brokers and agents 36,775 2,784 4,085 1,684 1,103 397 46,828
Reinsurers a 7,137 1,757 595 1,111 2,178 12,779
Total 47,603 12,544 11,913 3,875 4,969 4,383 85,287
Related parties 57,953 1,922 3,784 9,996 1,372 47 75,074
2017
Non related parties
Policyholders 11,506 2,049 3,715 1,929 845 1,217 21,261
Brokers and agents 6,044 477 770 153 604 221 8,265
Reinsurers a 18,476 7 {1,049) 1,002 586 15,022
Total 17,550 21,002 4,492 1,033 2,451 2,024 48,552
Related Parties 1,292 1,627 2,002 426 {47} {18) 5,282

The Company only enters inte insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized credit worthy parties. All customers wishing

to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. All receivables are manitored on an on
minimise exposure to bad debts. The five largest receivables at 31 December 2018 account for 75% of the total {

-going basis to
2017: 45%).



ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

9. DEFERRED COSTS

Policy Withholding Regulators’”  Excess of Loss
Acquisition Tax Levies Expenses

Payabie
Balance 31 December 2016 530 13,651 1,579 0
Provided 27,058 10,359 5,871 2,103
Paid {26,726} (11,507} {6,402) {2,103)
Balance 31 December 2017 862 12,503 1,048 0
Balance 31 December 2017 862 12,503 1,048 o
Provided 21,764 7,512 7,114 2,230
Paid {18,666) {7,788) {6,692} {2,230}
Balance 31 December 2018 3,960 12,227 1,470 0
Deferral
Balance 31 December 2014 18,623 4,728 2,290 0]
Provided 27,058 14,359 5,871 2,103
Incurred {37,637} {13,149} {6,556} {2,103)
Balance 31 December 2017 8,044 1,538 1,605 0
Balance 31 December 2017 8,044 1,938 1,605 &
Provided 21,764 7,512 7,114 2,230
incurred {22,501) {7,866) {5,890 (2,230}
Balance 31 Decemnber 2018 71,307 1,584 2,829 0
Net charge incurred 2018 2017
Policy Acquisition Costs
Provided 21,764 27,058
Opening deferral reversal 8,044 18,623
Closing deferral {7,307} (8,044}
Incurred 22,501 37,637
Withholding Tax
Provided 7,512 10,359
Opening deferral reversal 1,938 4,728
Closing deferrai {1,584) {1,938)
Incurred 7,866 13,149
Regulators’ Levies
Provided 7,114 5871
Opening deferral reversal 1,605 2,290
Closing deferral (2,829) {1,605}
Incurred 5,880 6,556
Excess of Loss Expenses
Pravided 2,230 2,103
Opening deferral reversal 0 0
Closing deferral {0) (0}
Incurred 2,230 2,103
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10. POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION PAYABLE

2018 2017
Balance at start of year 11,995 11,231
Surplus earned during year 2,657 131,995
Surplus paid during year {11,995} {11,231)
Balance at end of year 2,697 11,995

11. INVESTMENTS

There are no investments for Insurance Operations at 31 December 2018 {31 December 2017: None).
All investments shown below are for Shareholders’ Operations,

All investments are classified as available for sale.

Classification of investment balances 2018 2017
Held as fair value through income statements o 0
Available for sale 198,901 140,728
Cther investments held at amortized costs o] 0
Held to maturity 0] 0
Total investments 198,501 140,728
Movement in investments 2018 2017
investments at cost 138,807 100,765
Cumulative unrealised gains / (losses) 1,821 D
Total balance at start of year 140,728 100,765
Purchases at cast 190,005 47,795
Disposals at cost {132,187) {9,753}
Net movement at cost 57,818 38,642
Net change in fair value of investments 1,834 2,188
Net realised amounts transferred to statement of income {1,479) {267)
Net change in unrealised fair value of investments 355 1,921
Impairment of investments 1] 1]
nvestments at cost 196,625 138,807
Cumulative unrealised gains / {losses) 2,276 1,921
Total balance at end of year 198,901 140,728
Realised gains / {losses) to Statement of income 2018 2017
Proceeds from dizposal of investments 133,666 10,620
Costs of investments sold (132,187) {9,753)
Realised gains / {losses) 1,479 267

Investments inciude an investment stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers not rounded to thousands of SAR 3,000,000 (31
December 2017: SAR 3,000,000} in a Sukuk issued by an entitpcontrolled or significantly influenced by a related party.

b e i
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12. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderily transaction between
knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption that the enterprise is a going concern without any intention or need to
liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on adverse terms and that the transaction
takes place either:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or liability; or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous accessible market for the asset or fiability.

The fair value of financial instruments is based where possible on quoted prices for marketable securities. The fair value of
commission bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission rates for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of similar
financial instruments or where this cannot be determined, they are calculated using a variety of valuation techniques. The
assumptions are taken from observable market data where possible and where this is not possible judgment is refied upon to
establish fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for the same or identical instrument that an entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2! Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which ali significant
inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The fair values of on-balance sheet financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying amounts included in
the Financial Statements.

Carrying amounts and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financia assets and fiabilities, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation to fair value.

No financial instruments measured at fair value exist for Insurance Operations at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
None).

Available for sale investments are the only financial instruments measured at fair value for Shareholders’ Operations.

Available for Sale Investments level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying
Amounts
Mutual funds 85,465 8] 0 85,465
Sukuks G 111,513 0 111,513
Equities 0 0 1,823 1,823
Total 31 December 2018 85,465 111,513 1,923 198,901
Mutual funds 100,805 0 0 100,805
Sukuks 0 38,000 0 38,000
Equities 0 0 1,923 1,923
Total 31 December 2017 100,805 38,000 1,923 140,728

e
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There were no transfers or reclassifications between or within levels during the year ended 31 December 2018 {vear ended 31

Decemnber 2017: None).

Measurement of fair values for above level categories

The Level 1 mutual funds are valued based on quoted market price.

Fair values for the Level 2 sukuk holdings are determined based on broker quotes.

The Level 3 unquoted equity investment represents the Company’s holding in Najm for Insurance Services {“Najm”}, a
service provider to the motor insurance industry in Saudi Arabia. Najm is jointly owned by the insurance companies
participating in motor class. Carrying value is currently reflected at historical cost. The annual financial statements of Najm
are examined and analysed to assess any need for impairment.

o

The analysis of available for sale investments held at fair value is shown in Note 12 above.

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT — NET

Property and Equipment — Net
Leasehold Office Office Motor ir Capital Wark Total
Fixtures Furniture Equipment  Vehicles Equipment  in Progress

Cost
Balance 31 Dec 2016 3,502 1,18% 2,688 622 5,077 0 13,478
Additions 1,086 225 260 20 1,229 0 2,820
Disposals 0 0 0 {193) 0 0 {193}
Balance 31 Dec 2017 4,988 1,414 2,948 449 6,306 0 16,105
Balance 31 Dec 2017 4,988 1,414 2,948 449 6,306 e 16,105
Additions 306 30 405 o 1,308 442 2,551
Disposals {0} (0} {0) (214} (0) 0 {214)
Balance 31 Dec 2018 5,284 1,504 3,353 235 7,614 442 18,442
Depreciation
Balance 31 Dec 2016 2,488 841 2,286 507 4,245 0 16,367
Additions 575 138 385 38 717 0 1,853
Disposals 0 0 0 {190) 0 0 {190}
Balance 31 Dec 2017 3,063 979 2,671 355 4,962 0 12,030
Balance 31 Dec 2017 3,063 579 2,671 355 4,962 0 12,030
Additions 540 158 234 23 1,059 0 2,015
Disposals {0) {0 (0 {198} (0 0 {198}
Balance 31 Dec 2018 3,603 1,138 2,805 180 6,021 ¢ 13,847
Net Book Value 31 Dec 2017 1,925 435 277 94 1,344 0 4,075
Net Book Value 31 Dec 2018 1,691 366 448 55 1,593 442 4,595

e
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14, INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET

intangible Assets — Net
IT Systems C.:-:p ftal Work Total
in Progress

Cost
Balance 31 Dec 2016 9,980 0 9,980
Additions 2,488 0 2,488
Disposals 0 o 0
Balance 31 Dec 2017 12,468 0 12,468
Balance 31 Dec 2017 12,468 0 12,468
Additions 652 5,815 6,467
Disposals {0) 0 {0}
Balance 31 Dec 2018 13,120 5,815 18,935
Amortisation
Balance 31 Pec 2016 5,541 0 5.541
Additions 4,426 0 4,476
Disposals 0] 0 a
Balance 31 Dec 2017 9,967 a 9,967
Balance 31 Dec 2017 9,967 0 9,967
Additions 1,411 0 1,411
Disposals (0} o (0}
Balance 31 Dec 2018 11,378 0 11,378
Net Book Value 31 Dec 2017 2,501 0 2,501
Net Book Value 31 Dec 2018 1,742 5,815 7,557

15. PURCHASE OF INSURANCE PORTFOLIO AND RELATED BUSINESS, ASSETS AND UABILITIES OF ARABIAN SHIELD
INSURANCE COMPANY EC

All numbers in this note are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.

The insurance portfolio and related business of Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC was acquired by the Company effective
01 January 2009 at a purchase consideration approved by SAMA resulting in a Goodwill amount of SAR 45,100,000,

The refated assets and labilities of Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC were also acquired at book value amounting to SAR
20,825,600 as per the audited Financial Statements of Arabian Shield Insurance Company £C at 31 December 2008.

The combined sum due to Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC in consideration for goodwill and net assets acquired
amounted to SAR 69,925,600,

Based on criteria related to the Company’s 2arnings up to 31 December 2015 the Goodwill amount was subsequently reduced
by SAR 2,306,137 to SAR 46,793,863. This in turn resulted in a reduction in the combined sum due to Arabian Shield Insurance
Company EC from SAR 69,925,600 to SAR 67,619,463 which has been fuily paid with no further amounts owing.
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16. ANALYSIS OF WRITTEN AND EARNED PREMIUMS

Written premiums 2018 2017
Gross premiums written 625,101 593,078
Ceded premiums written {170,305) {196,707)
Net premiums written 454,786 396,371
Excess of loss expenses incurred {2,230} {2,103)
Net premiums 452,566 394,268
Earned premiums 2018 2017
Gross premiums earned 559,623 716,385
Ceded premiums earned {177,542) {253,228}
Net premiums earned 382,081 463,157
Excess of loss expenses incurred (2,230) {2,103)
Net premiums 379,851 461,054

17. MOVEMENT iN UNEARNED PREMIUMS

Gross Reinsurance Net

2018

Balance at start of year 155,564 {40,626) 114,938
Premium written during year 625,101 {172,535} 452,566
Premium earned during year {559,623) 179,772 {379,851)
Balance at end of year 221,042 {33,389) 187,652
Change in unearned premiums 65,478 7,237 72,715
2017

Balance at start of year 278,871 {97,147} 181,724
Premium written during year 593,078 {198,810) 394,268
Premium earned during year {716,385} 255,331 {461,054}
Balance at end of year 155,564 {40,626} 114,838
Change in unearned premiums (123,307) 56,521 {66,786)
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18. ANALYSIS OF WRITTEN AND EARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION

Written commission 2018 2017

Standard commission written 34,258 38,895
Profit commission written 1,440 924
Total commission written 35,698 35,819
Earned commission 2018 2017

Standard commission earned 35,398 49,763
Profit commission earned 1,440 924
Total commission earned 36,838 50,687

19. MOVEMENT IN UNEARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION

Standard Profit Total
Commission Commission Commission
2018
Balance at start of year 7,987 o 7,987
Commission written during year 34,258 1,440 35,698
Commission earned during year {35,398} {1,440} (36,838}
Balance at end of year 6,847 0 6,847
Change in unearned commission {1,140} 0 {1,140}
2017
Balance at start of year 18,855 o 18,855
Commission written during year 38,895 924 39,819
Commission earned during year (49,763) {(924) (50,687}
Balance at end of year 7,987 0 7,987
Change in unearned commission {10,868} a {10,868)
20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
2018 2017
Palicy acquisition costs payable 3,960 862
Other accounts payable 4,741 11,087
Total 8,701 11,949
21. REINSURERS’ BALANCES PAYABLE
2018 2017
Excess of Loss contracts 4] 0
Other contracts 10,760 6,026
Total 10,760 6,026
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22. DUTSTANDING CLAIMS AND TECHNICAL RESERVES

2018 2007
Outstanding gross claims 173,568 104,731
Less realisable value of salvage and subrogation & )
Sub Total 173,569 104,731
Gross claims incurred but not reported 194,280 179,883
Premium deficiency reserve 4,900 a
Other technical reserves 9,925 8,125
Outstanding gross claims and reserves 382,674 292,739
Less reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims {71,391) {58,958)
Less reinsurers’ share of gross claims incurred but not reported (81,748} {73,796)
Outstanding claims and technical reserves, net 229,535 159,985
23, MOVEMENT IN OUTSTANDING CLAIMS AND TECHNICAL RESERVES
2018 Gross Reinsurers Net
QOutstanding claims 104,731 (58,958) 45,773
IBNR reserve 179,883 {73,796} 106,087
Premium deficiency reserve o {0) o
Other technical reserves 8,125 {0} 8,125
Total at start of year 292,739 (132,754} 159,985
Provided claims 373,435 {95,645) 277,750
Provided IBNR reserve 14,397 {7,952} 6,445
Provided premium deficiency reserve 4,500 {0} 4,900
Provided other technical reserves 1,800 {0} 1,800
Total provided during the year 394,532 {103,597) 290,935
Paid claims during the year (304,597) 83,212 {221,385)
Qutstanding claims 173,569 {71,391} 102,178
Outstanding IBNR reserve 194,280 {81,748) 112,532
Outstanding premium deficiency reserve 4,900 (o) 4,900
Cutstanding other technical reserves 9,925 {0) 9,925
Totat at end of year 382,674 {(153,138) 229,535
Change in outstanding claims 68,838 (12,433} 56,405
Change in IBNR reserve 14,397 {7,952) 6,445
Change in premium deficienty reserve 4,900 {0) 4,500

Change in other technical reserves 1,800 (0} 1,800
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2017 Gross Reinsurers Net
Outstanding claims 93,878 (60,289) 33,589
IBNR reserve 162,917 {56,981) 105,936
Premium deficiency reserve 0 {0} 0
Other technical reserves 8,125 {0} 8,125
Total at start of year 264,920 {117,270) 147,650
Provided claims 380,102 {121,744} 258,358
Provided IBNR reserve 16,966 {16,815} 151
Provided premium defictency reserve 0 {0} 0
Provided other technical reserves 0 {C) 1]
Total provided during the year 397,068 {138,559) 258,509
Paid claims during the year {369,249} 123,075 {246,174)
Qutstanding claims 104,731 (58,958) 45,773
Qutstanding IBNR reserve 179,883 {73,796) 106,087
Outstanding premium deficiency reserve v, {0} o
Qutstanding other technical reserves 8,125 {0} 8,125
Total at end of year 292,739 {132,754} 159,985
Change in outstanding claims 10,853 1,331 12,184
Change in IBNR reserve 16,966 {16,815) 151
Change in premiurn deficiency reserve 0 {0} ]
Change in other technical reserves 0] G 0

24. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance contracts in order to protect against adverse
future claims experience and developments.

The triangulation analysis and tables helow reflect, by accident year, the cumulative development of reported claims up to
each subseguent annual reporting date. Cumulative payments against reported claims are shown and deducted from the
cumutative development of reported claims to show the reserve for outstanding reported claims. The reserve at the latest
reporting date for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR} is added to complete the estimate of the ultimate value of claims
cumulatively incurred to that reporting date whether reported or not. Comparative tables at 31 December 2017 are shown,

Quarterly evaluation techniques demonstrate the adequacy of iBNR reserves and the Company’s capability to accurately
predict the ultimate claims liability.




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

Gross claims developing Accident 2013 &
from 31 Dec 2013 Years Earlier 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Reported gross claims 940,666 940,666
IBNR 41,283 41,283
Total at 31 Dec 2013 981,945 981,949
Reported gross clalms 944,614 1,300,805 2,245,419
IBNR 5,083 211,497 216,580
Total at 31 Pec 2014 549,697 1,512,302 2,461,995
Reported gross claitms 945530 1,073,929 320,274 2,338,733
IBNR 2,083 7,308 97,436 107,227
Total at 31 Dec 2015 547,613 1,081,237 418,110 2,446,960
Reported gross claims 848,346 1,078,278 375,129 275,158 2,676,911
IBNR 4,897 5,831 14,491 137,598 162,917
Total at 31 Dec 2016 953,243 1,084,209 389,620 412,756 2,839,828
Reported gross claims 941,751 1,080,360 375,300 316,901 345,326 3,059,638
IBNR 4,250 5,005 9,873 46,888 113,867 175,883
Tota! at 31 Dec 2017 846,001 1,085,365 385,173 363,789 455,193 3,239,521
Reported gross claims 942,807 1,082,370 376,079 321,112 373,654 337,050 3,433,072
IBNR 2,250 3,750 6,195 30,176 44,402 107,507 194,280
Total at 31 Dec 2018 945,057 1,086,120 382,274 351,288 418,056 444,557 3,627,352
Cumulative ultimate gross claims 945,057 1,086,120 382,274 351,288 418,056 444,557 3,627,352
Cumulative gross claims to 31 Dec 2018 942,807 1,082,370 376,079 321,112 373,654 337,050 3,433,072
Cumulative payments to 31 Dec 2018 {929,526} (1,075,118) {365,205) (308,656}  (354,896) {222,102)  {3,255,503)
Qutstanding gross claims at 31 Dec 2018 13,281 7,252 6,874 12,456 18,758 114,848 173,569
Gross IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 2,250 3,750 6,195 30,176 44,402 107,507 194,280
Qutstanding gross claims and IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 15,531 11,002 13,069 42,632 63,160 222,455 367,845
Gross claims and IBNR cumulatively  Cumufative 2013 8 2014 & 2015 & 2016 & 2017 & 2018 &
developing from 31 Dec 2013 AccidentYears  Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier

At 31 Dec 2013 Cum Incurred 540,666

IBNR 41,283

Total 981,949
At31Dec2014 Cum Incurred 944,614 2,245,419

IBNR 5,083 216,580

Total 949,697 2,461,995
At 31 Dec 2015 Cum Incurred 945,530 2,015,458 2,339,733

IBNR 2,083 9,391 107,227

Total 947,613 2,028,850 2,446,960
At 31 Dec 2016 Cum Incurred 948,346 2,026,624 2,401,753 2,675,911

IBNR 4,897 10,828 25,319 162,917

Total 953,243 2037452 2,427,072 2,835,828
At 31 Dec 2017 Cum Incurred 941,751 2,022,111 2,387,411 2,714312 3,059,638

IBNR 4,250 9,255 15,128 66,016 175,883

Totai 546,001 2,031,366 2,416,539 2,780,328 3,235,521
At 31 Dec 2018 Cum incurred 942,807 2,025,177 2,401,256 2,722,368 3,096,022 3,433,072

IBNR 2,250 6,000 12,185 42,371 86,773 184,280

Total 545,057 2,031,177 2,413,451 2,764,739 3,182,795 3,627,352
initiaily Reserved including IBNR 981,949 2,461,999 2,446,960 2,839,828 3,239,521 3,627,352
Curnulative development exciuding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2018 842,807 ,025, 177 2,401,256 2,722,368 3,006,022 3,433,072
Curnulative development including 2,031,177 2,413,451 2,764,739 3,182,795 3,627.352

IBNR to 31 Dec 2018
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

Ceded claims developing Accident

2013 &

from 31 Dec 2013 Years Earlier 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Reported ceded claims 322,115 322,115
IBNR 15,885 15,885
Total at 31 Dec 2013 338,000 338,000
Reported ceded claims 303,938 1,127,774 1,431,712
IBNR 1,264 177,744 179,008
Total at 31 Dec 2014 305,202 1,305,518 1,610,720
Reported ceded claims 302,963 878,298 132,276 1,313,537
IBNR 1,248 3,654 38,157 43,059
Total at 31 Pec 2015 304,211 881,952 170,433 1,356,596
Reportad ceded claims 302,033 880,581 156,935 87,004 1,427,453
IBNR 1,266 2,966 7,245 45,504 56,981
Total at 31 Dec 2016 304,199 883,547 164,180 132,508 1,484,434
Reported ceded claims 299,728 880,791 156,190 96,581 115,306 1,549,186
IBNR 866 2,141 4,500 17,705 48,184 73,795
Total at 31 Dec 2017 300,594 882,932 161,090 114,286 164,090 1,622,892
Reported ceded claims 208,887 881,786 156,210 98,299 125,788 83,873 1,644,843
IBNR 566 1,641 2,508 15,080 22,189 39,754 81,748
Total at 31 Dec 2018 299,453 883,427 158,718 113,389 147,977 123,627 1,726,591
Cumulative ultimate ceded claims 289,453 883,427 158,718 113,389 147,977 123,627 1,726,501
Cumulative ceded claims to 31 Dec 2018 298,887 881,786 155,210 98,299 125,788 83,873 1,644,843
Cumulative payments to 31 Dec 2018 (292,291}  (876427) {151,167}  (89,715) {111,263)  {52,589) (1,573,452
Outstanding ceded claims at 31 Dec 2018 6,596 5,358 5,043 8,584 14,525 31,284 71,391
Ceded IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 566 1,641 2,508 15,080 22,189 39,754 81,748
Outstanding ceded claims and IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 7,162 7,000 7,551 23,674 36,714 71,038 153,139
Ceded claims and IBNR cumulatively  Cumulative 20138 2014 & 2015 & 2016 & 2017 & 2018 &
deve!op]ng from 31 Dec 2013 AccidentYears  Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier

At 31 Dec 2013 Cum Incurred 322,115

IBNR 15,885

Total 338,000
At 31 Dec 2014 Cum Incurred 303,938 1,431,712

IBNR 1,264 179,008

Total 305,202 1,610,720
At 31 Dec 2015 Curmn incurred 302,863 1,181,263 1,313,537

IBNR 1,248 4,902 43,059

Total 304,211 1,186,163 1,356,596
At 31 Dec 2016 Cum Incurred 302,933 1183514 1,340,448 1,427,453

IBNR 1,266 4,232 11,477 56,981

Tota! 304,199 1,187,746 1,351,926 1,484,434
At 31 Dec 2017 Cum Incurred 269,728 1,180,518 1,336,709 1,433,290 1,548,196

IBNR 266 3,007 7,507 25,612 73,796

Totai 300,594 1,183,526 1,344,616 1,458,902 1,622,992
At 31 Dec 2018 Cum Incurred 298,887 1,180,673 1,336,883 1,435,182 1,560,970 1,644,843

[BNR 566 2,207 4,715 19,805 41,994 81,748

Total 299,453 1,182,880 1,341,598 1,454,987 1,602,964 1,726,591
initialty Reserved including IBNR 333,000 1610720 1,356,596 1,484,434 1,622,992 1,726,591
Cumuiative development excluding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2018 298,887 1,180,673 1,336,883 1,435,182 1,560,970 1,644,843
Cumulative development including 299453 1,182,880 1,341598 1,454,987 1,602,964 1,726,591

IBNR 10 31 Dec 2018
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘060
Net claims developing Accident 23&
from 31 Dec 2013 Years Earlier 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Totat
Reported net claims 618,551 618,551
IBNR 25,398 25,398
Total at 31 Dec 2013 643,949 643,945
Reported net claims 640,676 173,031 813,707
IBNR 3,819 33,753 37,572
Total at 31 Dec 2014 644,495 206,784 851,279
Reported net claims 642,567 195,631 187,998 1,026,156
IBNR 835 3,654 59,679 64,168
Total at 31 bec 2015 643,402 199,285 247,677 1,090,364
Reported net claims 645,413 197,697 218,194 188,154 1,249,458
IBNR 3,631 2,865 7,246 92,094 105,836
Totat at 31 Dec 2016 649,044 200,662 225440 280,248 1,355,394
Reported net claims 642,023 199,569 219,110 220,320 225,420 1,510,442
IBNR 3,384 2,864 4,973 29,183 65,683 106,087
Total at 31 Dec 2017 645,407 202,433 224,083 249503 255,103 1,616,529
Reported net claims 643,920 200,584 219,869 223,813 247,866 253,177 1,788,229
IBNR 1,684 2,109 3,687 15,086 22,213 67,753 112,532
Total at 31 Dec 2018 645,604 202,693 223,556 237,899 270,079 320,930 1,900,761
Cumulative uftimate net claims 645,604 202,693 223,556 237,893 270,079 320,930 1,900,761
Cumulative net claims to 31 Dec 2018 643,920 200,584 219,869 222,813 247,866 253,177 1,788,229
Curnulative payments to 31 Dec 2018 (637,235]  (198,691) (218,038} (218,941) {243,633} (169,513} (1,686,051
Outstanding net claims at 31 Dec 2018 6,685 1,853 1,831 3,872 4,233 83,664 102,178
Net IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 1,684 2,109 3,687 15,086 22,213 67,753 112,532
Qutstanding net claims and IBNR at 31 Dec 2018 8,369 4,002 5518 18,958 26,446 151,417 214,710

Net claims and {BNR cumulatively Cumulative 2013 8 2014 8 2015 & 2016 & 2017 & 20188
developing from 31 Dec 2013 AccidentYears  Earlier Earlier Earlier Earfler Earlier Earlier
At 31 Dec 2013 Cum Incurred 618,551
IBNR 25,398
Total 043,949
At 31 Dec 2014 Cum Incurred 640,676 813,707
IBNR 3,819 37,572
Total 644,495 851,279
At 31 Dec 2015 Cum Incurred 642,567 838,198 1,026,196
IBNR 835 4,489 64,168
Total 643,402 842,687 1,080,364
At 31 Dec 2016 Cum tncurred 645,413 843,110 1,061,304 1,249,458
IBNR 3,631 6,596 13,842 105,936
Total 649,044 849,706 1,075,146 1,355,394
At 31 Dec 2017 Cum Incurred 642,023 841,592 1,060,702 1,281,022 1,510,442
IBNR 31,384 6,248 11,221 40,404 106,087
Total 645,407 847,840 1,071,923 1,321,426 1,616,529
At 31 Dec 2018 Cum Incurred 643,920 844,504 1,084,373 1,287,186 1,535,052 1,788,229
IBNR 1,684 3,793 7,480 22,566 44,779 112,532
Total 645,604 848,297 1,071,853 1,309,752 1,579,831 1,800,761
Initially Reserved including IBNR 643,949 851,279 1,090,364 1,355,394 1,616,529 1,900,761
Cumulative development excluding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2018 643,920 844,504 1,064,373 1,287,186 1,535,052 1,788,225
Cumulative development including
IBNR to 31 Dec 2018 645,604 848,297 1,071,853 1,309,752 1,579,831 1,500,761

vz O



ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

Gross claims developing Accident 2012 2
from 31 Dec 2012 Years Earlier 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Totai
Reported gross claims 670,852 670,852
IBNR 25,375 25,375
Total at 31 Dec 2012 696,227 696,227
Reported gross claims 677,578 263,088 840,666
IBNR 6,686 34,597 41,283
Total at 31 Dec 2013 684,264 297,685 581,949
Reported gross claims 679,963 264,651 1,300,805 2,245,419
IBNR 2,351 2,732 211,497 216,580
Total at 31 Dec 2014 682,314 267,383 1,512,302 2,461,599
Reporied gross claims 680,330 265,200 1,073,929 320274 2,339,733
IBNR 33 2,050 7,308 57,836 107,227
Total at 31 Dec 2015 680,363 267,250 1,081,237 418,110 2,446,960
Reported gross claims 682,193 266,153 1,078278 375129 275,158 2,676,911
IBNR 33 4,864 5,931 14,491 137,598 162,817
Total at 31 Dec 2016 682,226 271,017 1,084,209 389,620 412,756 2,839,828
Reported gross claims 680,638 261,113 1080360 375300 316,901 345,326 3,059,638
IBNR 33 4,217 5,005 9,873 45,888 113,867 179,883
Total at 31 Dec 2017 680,671 265,330 1,085,365 385,173 363,789 459,193 3,239,521
Cumulative ultimate gross claims 680,671 265,330 1,085365 385,173 363,789 459,193 3,239,521
Cumulative gross claims to 31 Dec 2017 680,638 261,113 1,080360 375300 316,901 345,326 3,059,633
Cumulative payments to 31 Dec 2017 (668,925 {258,455} (1,072,871) (367,318) {303,170} {284,168} (2,954,907)
Outstanding gross claims at 31 Dec 2017 11,713 2,658 7,489 7,982 13,731 61,158 104,731
Gross IBNR at 31 Dec 2017 33 4,217 5,005 9,873 46,888 113,867 179,883
Outstanding £ross claims and IBNR at 31 Dec 2017 11,746 6,875 12,494 17,855 60,619 175,025 284,614
Gross claims and IBNR cumulatively  Cumulative 2012 8 2013 & 2014 & 20158 2016 & 2017 &
developingfrom 31 Dec 2012 Accident Years  Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier Earlier

At 31 Dec 2012 Cum Incurred 670,852

IBNR 25,375

Total 696,227
At31 Dec 2013 Cum Incurred 677,578 840,666

IBNR 6,686 41,283

Total 684,264 981,949
At 31 Dec 2014 Cum Incurred 679,963 944,614 2,245,419

IBNR 2,351 5,083 216,580

Total 682,314 949,697 2,461,999
At 31 Dec 2015 Cum Incurred 680,330 945530 2,018,459 2,339,733

IBNR 33 2,083 5,391 107,227

Total 680,363 947,613 2,028,850 2,446,960
At 31 Dec 2016 Cumincurred 682,193 948346 2,026,624 2,401,753 2,676911

IBNR 33 4,897 10,828 25319 162917

Total 682,226 953,243 2,037,452 2,427,072 2,839,828
At 31 Dec 2017 Cumincurred 680,638 941,751 2,022,111 2,397,411 2,7314312 3,059,638

IBNR 33 4,250 9,255 15,128 66,016 179,283

Total 680,671 945,001 2,031,366 2,416,535 2,780,328 3,239,521
Initizily Reserved including IBNR 696,227 981949 2,461,999 2446960 2,839,828 3,239,521
Cumuiative development exeluding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2017 ~0580,638 941,751 2,022,111 2,357,411 2,714,312 3,058,638
Cumulative development including
IBNR o 31 Dec 2017 680,671 946,001 2,031,366 2,416,539 2,780,328 3,239,521
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

Ceded claims developing Accident 2012 8
from 31 Dec 2012 Years Earlier 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Reported ceded claims 232,732 222,732
IBNR 8,100 8,100
Total at 31 Dec 2012 230,832 230,832
Reported ceded claims 215,155 106,960 322,115
IBNR 586 15,299 15,885
Total at 31 Dec 2013 215,741 122,259 338,000
Reported ceded claims 213,679 50,259 1,127,774 1,431,712
IBNR 679 585 177,744 178,008
Tota! at 31 Dec 2014 214,358 90,844 1,305,518 1,610,720
Reparted ceded claims 213,655 89,308 878,298 132,276 1,313,537
IBNR 15 3,233 3,654 38,157 43,059
Total at 31 Dec 2015 213,670 90,541 881,052 170,433 1,356,586
Reported ceded claims 213,577 89,356 880,581 156,835 87,004 1,427,453
IBNR 15 1,251 2,566 7,245 45,504 56,981
Total at 31 Dec 2016 213,592 80,607 883,547 164,180 132,508 1,484,434
Reported ceded claims 215,246 24,482 880,791 156,180 55,581 115,506 1,549,196
IBNR io 856 2,141 4,900 17,705 48,184 73,756
Totatat 31 Dec 2017 215,256 85,338 882,932 161,090 114,286 164,090 1,622,992
Cumulative uitimate ceded clajms 215,256 85,338 882,932 161,090 114,286 164,090 1,622,992
Cumulative ceded claims to 31 Dec 2017 215,246 84,482 880,791 156,180 96,581 115,906 1,548,196
Cumulative payments to 31 Dec 2017 {206,216) (83,450} {875,286} (150,062) {86,974} (88,250)  (1.490,238)
Outstanding ceded ¢laims at 31 Dec 2017 9,030 1,032 5,505 6,128 9,607 27,656 58,958
Ceded IBNR at 31 Dec 2017 10 856 2,141 4,800 17,705 48,184 73,756
Outstanding ceded claims and IBNR at 31 Dec 2017 9,040 1,888 7,646 11,028 27,312 75,840 132,754
Ceded claims and IBNR cumulatively  Cumulative 2002 & 2013 & 2014 & 2015 & 2016 & 2017 &
developing from 31 Dec 2012 AccidentYears  Eatlier Eariier Earlier Earlier Earlier Eatlier

At 31 Dec 2012 Cum Incurred 222,732

IBNR 8,100

Total 230,832
At31 Dec 2013 Cumincurred 215,155 322,115

IBNR 586 15,885

Total 215,741 338,000
At 31 Dec 2014 Cumincurred 213,679 303,938 1,431,712

IBNR 679 1,264 179,008

Total 214,358 305,202 1,610,720
At 31 Dec 2015 Cum Incurred 213,655 302,963 1,181,261 1,313,537

IBNR 15 1,248 4,802 43,059

Total 213,670 304,211 1,186,163 1,356,596
At 31 Dec2016 Cum Incurred 213,577 302,533 1,183,514 1,340,449 1,427,453

IBNR 15 1,266 4,232 11,477 56,981

Total 213,592 304,199 1,187,746 1,351,926 1,484434
At 31 Dec 2017 Cumincurred 215,246 298,728 1,180,519 1,336,709 1,433,250 1,549,196

IBNR 10 866 3,007 7,807 25,612 73,786

Total 215,256 300,594 1,183,526 1,344,616 1,458,902 1,622,992
Initially Reserved including IBNR 230,832 338,000 1,610,720 1,356,596 1,484,434 1,622,992
Cumulative development excluding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2017 215,246 294,728 1,180,519 1,336,708 1,433,290 1,549,156
tumulative development including 215256 300,594 1,183,526 1,344,616 1458902 1,622,992

IBNR to 31 Dec 2017
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN 5AR ‘000

Net claims developing Accident 2012 &
from 31 Dec 2012 Years Earlier 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Reported net claims 448,120 448,120
IBNR 17,275 17,275
Total at 31 Dec 2012 465,395 465,395
Reported net claims 462,423 156,128 618,551
IBNR 6,100 19,298 25,398
Total at 31 Dec 2013 468,523 175,426 643,949
Reported net claims 466,284 174,392 173,031 813,707
IBNR 1,672 2,147 33,753 37,572
Total at 31 Dec 2014 467,956 176,539 206,784 851,279
Reported net claims 466,675 175,892 195,631 187,998 1,026,196
IBNR 18 817 3,654 59,679 64,168
Total at 31 Dec 2015 466,693 176,708 199,285 247,877 1,090,364
Reported net claims 468,616 176,797 197,697 218,194 188,154 1,245,458
IBNR 18 3,613 2,965 7,246 82,004 105,936
Total at 31 Bec 2016 468,634 180,410 200,662 225440 280,248 1,355,354
Reported net claims 465,392 176,631 185,569 218,110 220,320 229420 1,510,442
IBNR 23 3,361 2,864 4,973 29,183 65,683 106,087
Total at 31 Dec 2017 465,415 175,992 202,433 224,083 249,503 295103 1,616,529
Cumulative ultimate net claims 465,415 179,992 202,433 224,083 249,503 295,103 1,616,529
Cumulative net claims to 31 Dec 2017 465,392 176,631 199,569 219,110 220320 229,420 1,510,442
Cumulative payments to 31 Dec 2017 {462,709} {175,005)  {197,585) (2 17,256) {216,196} (195,918) {1,464,669)
Qutstanding net claims at 31 Dec 2017 2,683 1,626 1,984 1,854 4,124 33,502 45,773
Net IBNR at 31 Dec 2017 23 3,361 2,864 4,873 29,183 65,683 106,087
Outstanding net claims and IBNR 2t 31 Dec 2017 2,706 4,987 4,848 6,827 33,307 93,185 151,860
Net claims and IBNR cumulatively Cumulative 2012 8, 20138 2014 & 2015 & 2016 & 2017 &
developing from 31 Dec 2012 AccidentYears  Earlier Earlier Earlier Earller Earlier Earlier

At 31 Dec 2012 Cum Incurred 448,120

IBNR 17,275

Total 465,395
At 31 Dec2013 Cum incurred 462,423 618,551

IBNR 6,100 25,398

Toial 468,523 643,849
At 31 Dec 2014 Cum Incurred 466,284 640,676 813,707

IBNR 1,672 3,819 37,572

Total 467,956 644,495 851,279
At 31 Dec 2015 Cum Incurred 466,675 642,567 838,198 1,026,196

iBNR 18 835 4,489 64,168

Total 466,693 643,402 842,687 1,080,364
At 31 Dec 2016 Curn Incurred 468,616 645,413 843,110 1,061,304 1,249,458

IBNR 18 3,631 6,596 13,842 105,836

Total 468,634 649,044 849,706 1,075,146 1,355,394
At31 Dec2017 Curn Incurred 465,392 642,023 841,592 1,080,702 1,281,022 1,510,442

IBNR 23 3,384 6,248 11,221 40,404 106,087

Total 465,415 645,407 847,840 1,071,923 1,321,426 1,616,529
Initiafiy Reserved including 1BNR 465,395 643,945 851,279 1,080,364 1,355,394 1,616,529
Cumuliative development excluding
IBNR to 31 Dec 2017 465,352 642,023 841,592 1,060,702 1,281,022 1,510.442
Cumulative development including
IBNR to 31 Dec 2017 465,415 645,407 847,840 1,071,923 1,321,426 1,616,529
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

25. PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
Zakat and income tax have been provided for in accordance with regulations currently in force in Saudi Arabia.

The differences between financial and adjusted taxable results are mainly due to provisions which are not allowed in the
calculation of taxable income.

Zakat is calculated on Saudi shareholders’ share of adjusted equity subject to a minimum base equal to the relevant share of
adjusted net profit. Foreign shareholders are subject to income tax calculated on the relevant share of adjusted net profit,

2018 2017
Percentages applicable to zakat and income tax
Sharehelding percentage subject to zakat 92% 92%
Shareholding percentage subject to income tax 8% 8%
Movement on zakat account
Balance start of year 21,060 14,309
Provided 10,9560 13,363
Paid {5,509} (6,612}
Balance end of year 256,511 21,060
Movement on income tax account
Balance start of year 3,205 2,508
Provided 789 2,109
Paid {2,025} {1,412}
Balance end of year 1,969 3,205

Status of assessments

The Company has filed zakat and income tax returns for the period from incorporation to 31 December 2008 and for each of
the years ended 31 December 2009 to 31 December 2017 and awaits the finalisation of assessments.

As per the SAMA Circular No. 381000074519 dated 11 April 2017 and subsequent amendments through certain clarifications
relating to the accounting for zakat and income tax {“SAMA Circular”), effective 01 January 2017, zakat and income tax are to be
accrued through shareholders’ equity under retained earnings.
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ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

26. SHARE CAPITAL

All prumbers in this note are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.

The authorised, issued and fully paid share capital of the Company is SAR 300,000,000 (31 December 2017: SAR 200,000,000}
consisting of 30,000,000 (31 December 2017: 20,000,000) shares each with a nominal value of 10 Saudi Riyals.

The Board of Directors resolved in their meeting held on 15 February 2018 to increase the share capital subject to receiving the
required approvals of the relevant authorities and thereafter the approval of shareholders,

The resolution provided for a share capital increase fram SAR 200,000,000 to SAR 300,000,000 by issuing one bonus share for
every two shares held thereby increasing the number of shares in issue from 20,000,000 shares to 30,000,000 shares with the
additional SAR 100,000,000 share capital generated by capitalising SAR 80,000,000 from retained earnings and SAR 20,000,000
from statutory reserve.

Approval was received from the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA) and the Capital Market Authority {CMA} on 01
March 2018 and 15 March 2018 respectively. Approval from shareholders was obtained in the extraordinary general assernbly
meeting held on 21 May 2018 and the bonus shares were issued on 22 May 2018.

The total transaction costs relating to the bonus share issue amounted to SAR 756,991.

The Commercial Registration Certificate was amended with effect from 24 July 2018 to reflect the increase in share capital
following the bonus share issue.

The shareholders of the Company are subject to zakat and income tax.

27. STATUTORY RESERVE

All numbers in this note are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.

I compliance with the Cooperative Insurance Law, the implementing Regulations and the Articles, 20% of sharehoiders’ net
profit (as defined below) is transferred to statutory reserve at the end of each financial year until the statutory reserve amounts
ta 100% of the paid capital,

At 31 December 2018 Statutory Reserve represents 20% of shareholders' net profit (as defined below) earned from
incorporation to 31 December 2018 {2017: 20% of shareholders’ net profit earned from incorporation to 31 December 2017).

in calculating Statutory Reserve, shareholders’ net profit is stated after deducting zakat and income tax charges and excludes
unrealised investment gains.

The Statutory Reserve is not available for distribution but it may be converted to share capital in funding a bonus share issue.

The statutory reserve amount, calculated on the above basis, was reduced by SAR 20,000,000 on 22 May 2018 as a result of the
issue of bonus shares on that date.

28, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing shareholders’ net profit (as defined below) by the weighted average number of
issued shares during the year.

In calculating earnings per share, shareholders' net profit is stated before deducting zakat and income tax charges and excludes
unrealised investment gains.

As there are no dilutive effects, basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.

Earnings per share is calculated based on the revised number of shares in issue following the bonus share issue on 22 May 2018
and prior comparatives have been restated accordingly.
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. 20, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

All numbers in this note are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.

. Objectives are set by the Company to optimise the structure and sources of capital and maintain healthy capital ratios to
. support its business objectives and consistently maximise returns to sharehoiders and poiicyholders,

The Company’s approach to managing capital invalves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a coordinated way, assessing
shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking appropriate actions to Influence the capitai
- position of the Company in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics.

The primary source of capital used by the Company is equity shareholders’ funds. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

. The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’ capital
- requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders. The capital
- structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising paid share capital, statutory reserves,
retained earnings and fair value reserve on investments.

. The Implementing Regulations detail a3 minimum solvency margin requirement calculated as the highest of the following:

= Minimum net assets of SAR 100,000,000 ~ calculated after adjusting for admissibility factors
*  Premium solvency margin calculation
. = Claims solvency margin calcutation

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements. The capital structure of the Company as
shown in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2018 totals SAR 427,685,000 consisting of paid-up share capital
SAR 300,000,000, statutory reserves SAR 33,082,000, retained earnings SAR 92,327,000 and fair value reserve on investments
SAR 2,276,000 (2017: SAR 404,787,000 consisting of paid-up share capital SAR 200,000,000, statutory reserves SAR
: 48,573,000, retained earnings SAR 154,293,000 and fair value reserve on investments SAR 1,921,000).

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with all externally imposed capital requirements
during the reported financial year.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
All numbers in this page are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands.
Definitions and explanations

Related parties represent shareholders, both individual and corporate, directors, members of the audit, executive, investment,
risk and nomination and remuneration committees, the board secretary, key executives and entities controfled (including
jointly controfled) or significantly influenced by such parties. The immediate families of the above are related parties.

Key Executives, in the context of defining Related Parties, for the year ended 31 December 2018 means the following five
people (2017: five people) — the Chief Executive Officer {CEO), the Chief Financial Officer {CFO) and the three other executives
{2017: three other executives) who earned the highest remuneration,

All transactions with refated parties are made on an arm’s tength basis and no conflicts or potential conflicts of interest were
identified during the year ended 31 December 2018 {2017: None). Amounts due to related parties do not include amounts
provided for outstanding claims under processing or IBNR. Balances due to or from related parties are unsecured, interest free
and are settled in cash and no guarantees have been made or received in relation to any related party transaction or balance.

An impairment assessment is undertaken examining the financial position of and the market in which each related party
operates. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables refating to
amounts due from related parties (2017 Nil).

Transactions with related parties are in respect of purchase of insurance portfolio and related business, investments,
remuneration and annual insurance contracts.

Purchase from a related party of insurance portfolio and related business

The insurance portfolio and related business of Arabian Shieid Insurance Company EC was acquired by the Company effactive
(1 fanuary 2009 at a purchase consideration approved by SAMA resulting in a Goodwill amount of SAR 48,100,000.

The related assets and liabilities of Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC were also acquired at book value amounting to SAR
20,825,600 as per the audited Financial Statements of Arabian Shield insurance Company EC at 31 December 2008,

The combined sum due to Arabian Shield Insurance Company EC in consideration for goodwill and net assets acquired
amounted to SAR 69,925,600.

Based on criteria related to the Company’s earnings up to 31 December 2015 the Goodwill amount was subsequently reduced
by SAR 2,306,137 to SAR 46,793,863. This in turn resulted in a reduction in the combined sum due to Arabian Shield insurance
Company EC from SAR 69,925,600 to SAR 67,619,463 which has been fully paid with no further amounts owing.

Investment in a related party

Investments at 31 December 2018 include an investment of SAR 3,000,000 (2017: SAR 3,000,000) in a Sukuk which generated
an income in the year ended 31 December 2018 of SAR 125,929 (2017: SAR 98,040} issued by Almarai Company, an entity
controlled or significantly influenced by a related party,

Remuneration of Board of Directors and Committee Members for year ended 31 December 2017

The full year provision for 2017 amounting to SAR 1,500,000 was determined and accrued at 31 December 2017 and approval
to pay up to this amount was granted at the Annual General Assembly held on 21 May 2018 and SAR 1,500,000 was
subsequently paid.

Remuneration of Board of Directors and Committee Members for year ended 31 December 2018

A provision amounting to SAR 1,200,000 was made in the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 {2017:
SAR 1,500,000} in respect of board fees, attendance fees and reimbursement of expenses for the board and for members of
the audit, executive, investment, risk and nomination and remuneration committees. Approval to pay up te this amount shall
be sought at the Annual General Assembly o be held in 2018,
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Salaries and Allowances of Key Executives and Board Secretary

Salaries and Allowances encompass all elements of compensation including provision for end-of-service benefit.

farj il
Salarjes and Allowances 2018 2017
Provided and paid for key executives and board secretary 6,882 6,370
Transactions with and amounts due to and from related parties

Transactions with related parties 2018 2017
Gross written premiums from related parties

Shareholders 341 432

Directors C 15

Committees, board secretary and key executives 4 21

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 278,684 164,338
Ceded written premiums to related parties

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 2,169 2,215
Commissions from related parties

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 231 117
Commissians to related parties

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 4 19
Gross claims incurred by related parties

Shareholders 82 136

Directors v; 4

Committees, board secretary and key executives 24 )

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 152,158 106,729
Ceded claims incurred to related parties

Entities controlled or significantly influenced {304} {20}
Amaunts due to and from related parties 2018 2017
Amounts due from related parties

Shareholders 0 0

Directors o 4]

Cormmittees, board secretary and key executives g o

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 75,065 5,282

Pravision {11,400} {1,000}

Total due from related parties, net 63,674 4,282
Amounts due to related parties

Shareholders 0 0

Committees, board secretary and key executives 6] 0

Entities controlled or significantly influenced 17,098 11,168

Total due to related parties 17,098 11,168

47
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31, SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting is not undertaken for shareholders’ operations, assets and liabilities.

Insurance Operations ~ geographic segments:

The Company has since incorporation operated primarily in Saudi Arabia.

Insurance Operations — operating segments:

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reporis concerning components of the Company that are regulariy
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors in their function as chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resgurces to segments and assess performance.

Transactions between operating segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions.

The revenue from external parties reported to the Board is measured in a manner consistent with that in the statement of
income.

There have been no changes to the basis of segmentation or the measurement basis for segment profits or iosses since 31
December 2017.

Unallocated assets not subject to segmentation are cash and cash equivalents, short term fixed income deposits, premiums
and reinsurers’ receivable — net, investments, due from related parties - net, prepaid expenses and other assets, long term
fixed income depaosits, property and equipment — net, intangible assets ~ net, goodwill, statutory deposits and accrued income
on statutory deposits.

Unallocated liabilities not subject to segmentation are policyholders’ claims payable, accrued and other liabilities, reinsurers’
balances payable, due to related parties, accounts payable, withholding tax provision, regulators’ levies provision, end-of-
service indemnities, policyholders’ surplus distribution payable, fair value gain / (loss} reserve on investments, zakat, income
tax, dividend payable and accrued comemission income payable to SAMA.

The unallocated assets and labilities are not reported to chief operating decision maker under related segments and are
monitored on a centraiized basis.
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The segment information provided to the Company’s Board of Directors for the reportable segments for the Company's total
assets and liabilities at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, its total revenues, expenses and net income for the years
then ended, are as follows:

. Total Total

Operating segments as at 31 Dec 2018 Motor  Medical &ngsgpt’y ’E’St:‘fi?;ég Insurance  Shareholders  Total
Operations  Operations

ASSETS
Allocated assets:
Reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums 16,624 0 13,157 3,608 33,389 0 33,389
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 14,071 0 41,859 15,421 71,391 0 71,391
Reinsurers’ share of gross daims incurred but not reported 62,500 0 11,173 8,075 81,748 0 81,748
beferred policy acquisition costs 662 4,794 1,468 383 7,307 0 7,307
Deferred withholding tax 831 o] 580 173 1,584 o 1,584
Deferred regulators’ levies 139 2,588 73 18 2,879 ¢] 2,829
Deferred excass of loss expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Total allocated assets 94,827 7,383 68,350 27,678 198,248 0 193,248
Unallocated assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 253,385 177,181 430,566
Short term fixed income deposits 81,234 0 81,234
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net 78,587 0 78,587
Investments 0 198,801 198,801
Due from related parties — net 63,674 0 63,674
Prepaid expenses and other assets 34,212 3,121 37,333
Property and equipment —net 4,595 0 4,595
Intangible assets —net 7,557 0] 7,557
Goodwill 0 46,794 46,754
Statutory deposit 0 30,000 30,000
Accrued income and statutory deposit ] 2,003 2,003
Total unallocated assets 523,244 458,000 981,244
TOTAL ASSETS 721,492 458,000 1,179,492
LIABILITIES
Allocated labilities:
Relnsurers’ balances payable 3,139 0 4,461 3,160 10,760 0 10,760
Unearned gross premiums 27,807 173,262 16,124 3,849 221,042 #] 221,042
Unearned reinsurance commission 2,909 0 3,261 677 6,847 g 6,847
Qutstanding gross caims 30,980 76,420 49,937 16,232 173,565 0 173,569
Gross claims incurred but not reported 125,000 45,550 15,230 8,500 194,280 0 184,280
Premium deficiency reserve 0 4,900 G 0 4,800 0 4,900
Other technical reserves 4,375 3,580 1,350 620 9,925 0 9,925
Total allocated liabilitias 194,210 303,712 50,363 33,038 621,323 0 621,323
Unallocated liabilities:
Accrued and other lisbilities 46,321 2,486 48,807
Due to related parties 17,098 0 17,098
Accounts payable 8,701 0 8,701
Withholding tax provision 12,227 0 12,227
Regulators’ levies provision 1,470 0 1,470
End-of-senvice indemnities 9,001 0 9,001
Policyholders’ surplus distribution payable 2,697 0 2,697
Zakat 0 26,511 26,511
Income tax 0 1,569 1,969
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 0 2,003 2,003
Total unaliocated liabilities 97,515 32,569 130,484
TOTAL LUABILITIES 713,838 32,969 751,807

ot
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. Total Total

Operating segments as at 31 Dec 2017 Motor  Medical 8‘: Eggﬁggy Fgf’;:ﬂ,:g Insurance  Shareholders  Total
Operations  Operations

ASSETS
Allocated assets:
Reinsurers’ share of uneamed gross premiums 26,660 0 11,956 2,010 40,626 0 40,626
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 14,287 0 36,680 7,991 58,958 0 58,958
Reinsurers’ share of gross daims incurred but not reported 62,500 8] 10,086 1,200 73,796 o 73,756
Deferred policy acquisition costs 3,106 3,314 1,416 208 8,044 ¢ 8,044
Deferred withholding tax 1,333 8] 505 100 1,938 0 1,938
Deferred regulators’ levies 275 1,256 63 11 1,605 0 1,605
Deferred excess of loss expenses 0 v 0 0 0 0 0
Total allocated assets 108,161 4570 60,716 11520 184,967 0 184,967
Unallocated assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 377,418 172,538 549,956
Short term fixed income deposits 0 0 0
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable—net 38,052 8] 38,052
Investrents 0 140,728 140,728
Due from related parties - net 4,282 0 4,282
Prepaid expenses and other assets 8,080 1,086 9,166
Property and equipment — net 4,075 ¥ 4,075
Intangible assets - net 2,501 0 2,501
Goodwilf 0 46,794 46,794
Statutory deposit 0 20,000 20,000
Accrued incomne and statutory deposit 0 1,563 1,563
Total unaliocated assets 434,408 382,709 817,117
TOTAL ASSETS 619,375 382,709 1,002,084
LIABILITIES
Aliocated liabilities:
Reinsurers’ balances payable 2,532 0 2,229 1,265 6,026 0] 6,026
Unearned gross premiums 54,933 83,722 14,762 2,140 155,564 ¢ 155,564
Uneamed reinsurance commission 4,665 N, 2953 369 7,587 o, 7687
Qutstanding gross dlaims 39,895 13,201 42,995 8,640 104,731 0 104,731
Gross claims incurred but not reported 125,000 40,000 13,623 1,260 179,883 0 179,883
Premium deficiency reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 G
Other technical reserves 3,225 2,550 2,150 200 8,125 4] 8,125
Total allocated liabilities 230,250 139473 78,719 13,874 462,316 0 462,316
Unallocated liabilities;
Accrued and other liabilities 49,244 2,805 52,049
Due to related parties 13,168 0 11,168
Accounts payahle 11,949 0 11,949
Withholding tax provision 12,503 0 12,503
Regulators’ fevies provision 1,048 0 1,048
End-ofservice indemnities 8,441 0 8,441
Policyholders’ surplus distribution payable 11,995 0 11,955
Zakat 0 21,060 21,060
income tax 0 3,205 3,205
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 0 1,563 1,563
Total unaliocated liab#lities 106,348 28,633 134,881
TOTAL HABILITIES 568,664 28,633 597,297
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] . Property Protection  insurance
d

Operating segments for 2018 Motor Medical &Casualty & Savings Operations
REVENUES
Qross premiums written 83,055 407,344 79,600 55,102 625,101
Reinsurance premiums ceded - [oeal {8,405) 0 {6,878} {2,208} {17,491)
Reinsurance premiums ceded - foreign {41,289) 0 {63,722} {(47,803) (152,814}
Excess of loss expenses {1,086} 0 {1,134) G (2,230}
Net premiums written 32,265 407,344 7,866 5,081 452,566
Change in unearned gross premiums 27,126 {89,539) {1,356) {1,708) {65,478)
Change in reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums {10,036) 0 1,201 1,598 {7,237}
Net premiums earned 49,355 317,805 7,711 4,980 379,851
Reinsurance commissions 10,043 8] 15,619 11,176 36,838
Other underwriting income 4,333 1,993 0 0 6,326
TOTAL REVENUES 63,731 319,798 23,330 16,156 423,015
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid (71,348) (187,114} {10,254} {35,881) (304,587}
Expenses incurred related to claims 0 0 0 0 0
Reinsurers’ share of gross clalms paid 40,026 8] 9,381 33,805 83,212
Net claims paid (31,322)  (187,114) {873) {2,076) {221,385)
Changes in outstanding grass claims 8,915 {63,219) {6,942} {7,582} (68,838)
Changes in reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims {216] 0] 5,219 7,430 12,433
Changes in gross IBNR 0 (5,550} {1,607) {7,240} {14,397)
Changes in reinsurers’ share of gross IBNR o G 1,077 6,875 7,952
Net claims incurred {22,623) (255,883) (3,126) {2,603) {284,235)
Premium deficiency reserve {0} {4,800} (0} {0} {4,800}
Other technical reserves {4,375} 3,420 (225) {620} {1,800)
Policy acquisition costs {4,101} {8,567} (2,801) {6,032) {22,501}
Withholding tax (2,621) {0) (2,927 (2,318) {7,866}
Regulators’ lavies {510) (4,767) {356} {257) (5,880}
Other underwriting expenses (2,195) (2,670} (801} {306) {6,572)
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES (36,425} {274,367) (10,236) {12,736} {333,764)
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME / (LO5S) 27,306 45,431 13,094 3,420 89,251
OTHER OPERATING INCOME / {EXPENSES)
{Allowance for} / Reversal of doubtful debts {2,019) {3,360) {968} {253} {6,600}
General and administrative expenses {18,138} (30,179) {8,698) (2,272} (59,288}
Depreciation and amortization {1,048) (1,744} {503) {131) {3,426)
Commission income on deposits 2,150 3,577 1,032 269 7,028
Dividends investment income 0 0 0 g 1]
Realized gain / {loss) on investments 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING INCOME / [EXPENSES) (19,056) (31,706} (9,237) (2,387} (62,286}
NET SURPLUS / {DEFICIT) FROM INSURANCE OPERATIONS 8,250 13,725 3,857 1,033 26,965
Absorption of deficit by / transfer of surplus to Shareholders (7,425) {12,353) {3,560) (930} (24,268)
NET RESULT FROM INSLIRANCE OPERATIONS AFTER ABSORPTION g5 1,372 397 103 2,697

OF DEFICIT BY / TRANSFER OF SURPLUS TO SHAREHOLDERS

7 i
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. . Property Protection  Insurance
Operating segments for 2017 Motor Medical &Casualty & Savings Operations
REVENUES
Gross premiums written 165,101 296,480 81,607 48,890 593,078
Reinsurance premiums ceded — local (103) o (11,451) (76} (11,630}
Reinsurance premiums ceded — foreign {80,151) 0 {59,304) (45,622} (185,077}
Excess of loss expenses {829) 0] (1,274) 0 {2,103}
Net premiums written 84,018 296,480 9,578 4,192 394,268
Change in unearned gross premiums 112,153 7,153 3,970 31 123,307
Change in reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums {53,140} 8] {3,360) (21} {56,521}
Net premiums earned 143,031 303,633 10,188 4,202 461,054
Reinsurance commissions 24,169 0 16,508 10,010 50,687
Other underwriting income 4,269 727 0 0 4,996
TOTAL REVENUES 171,469 304,360 26,696 14,212 516,737

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid (167,285)  (159,690) {15,259) {27,015} (369,249}
Expenses incurred related to claims 0 o 8] 0 0

Reinsurers’ share of gross claims paid 82,871 0] 14,316 25,788 123,075

Net claims paid {84,314) (159,690} {943) (1,227} (246,174}
Changes in outstanding gross ciaims 7,108 {15,079) 5,047 {7,829) {10,853)
Changes in reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims (2,549) 0 {6,132} 7,350 (1,331)
Changes in gross IBNR (25,000) 15,000 (5,816} {1,150} (16,966}
Changes in reinsurers’ share of gross IBNR 12,500 0] 3,225 1,090 16,815

Net claims incurred {92,255}  {159,769) {4,619) {1,868) (258,508}
Premium deficiency reserve (0) (0) {0) {0} {0)
Other technical reserves {0) {0) {0) {0} {0)
Policy acquisition costs (18,353} (11,221} (3,417} {4,646) {37,637}
Withholding tax (7,138} (0} {3,485) {2,525} {13,149}
Regulators’ levies {1,386) {4,554) {367) (249) {6,556)
Other underwriting expenses {5,008) {2,937} {198} {12} {8,155)
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES (124,143} (178,481) (12,086) {4,298} {324,0006)
NET UNDERWRITING {LOSS) / INCOME 47,328 125,879 14,610 4,514 192,731

OTHER OPERATING {EXPENSES} / INCOME

(Allowance for) / Reversal of doubtful dehts {982) (2,613) (303} {102} (4,000}
General and administrative expenses (17,053) {45,355} {5,263} {1,771} {69,442}
Depreciation and amortization {1,542) (4,101) (477) (160} {6,280)
Commission income on deposits / sukuks 1,704 4,531 526 177 65,938
Dividends investment incame 0 o 0 0 0
Realized gain / {loss) on investments 0 0 0] 0 0
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES) {17,873} {47,538) {5,517} (1,856} {72,784}
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM INSURANCE OPERATIONS 29,455 78,341 3,093 3,058 115,847
Absorption of deficit by / transfer of surplus to Shareholders (26,510) {70,507) (8,183} (2,752) {107,952}

NET RESULT FROM INSURANCE GPERATIONS AFTER ABSORPTION

OF DEFICIT BY / TRANSFER OF SURPLUS TO SHAREHOLDERS 2,945 7.834 910 306 11,995

Ziia
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses the existing
organisational structure to meet strategic targeis. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and knowledgeable risk
acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic targets approved by the Board of Directors.

Risk management structure
A cohesive organisational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor and control risks.

Boord of Directors
The apex of risk gavernance is the centralised oversight of the Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary
approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Senior management
Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the Company's
pre-defined risk appetite.

Risks faced by the Company

The Company is exposed to insurance, reinsurance, credit, currency, interest rate, liquidity, regulatory framework, geographical
concentration, investment market price and other operational risks. The way these risks are mitigated are summarised below,

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk that actual claims payable to contract holders in respect of insured evenis exceed the carrying amount
of insurance liabilities. This could occur if the frequency, severity or absolute amounts of claims are more than expected.

Insurance risk is monitored regularly by the Company to establish if the levels are within the projected frequency bands.
The insurance risks arising from insurance contracts are concentrated in Saudi Arabia.

Insurance risk is influenced by the frequency, severity and absolute amounts of claims. Careful evaluation of risks through
implementation of underwriting strategy, together with the use of reinsurance, reduce risk.

The Company underwrites mainly property, accident, motor, medical, marine and group protection and savings risks. These are
regarded as short-term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settied within one year of the insured event
taking place. This diversification and short term nature mitigates risk,

Property and Accident
For property contracts the main risks are fire and business interruption.

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the properties, contents insured and profits of the
underlying businesses. The cost of rebuilding properties, replacing contents and the time taken to restart operations following
business interruptions are the main factors that influence the level of claims.

Meotar
For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of vehicles.

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key factors that
influence the level of claims.

Medical
For medical contracts the main risks are medical expenses incurred for treatment and iliness.

Marine
For marine contracts the main risks are loss or damage to craft and accidents resulting in tatal or partial loss of cargo.

Graup Protection and Savings
The Company writes Group Life including Group Credit Life and PHI policies categorized as Group Protection and Savings

notwithstanding the absence of savings elements,
53 N .
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In group policies the main risks are maortality and morbidity of the insured compounded due to the concentration of fives. The
Company engages in various levels of underwriting including declaration of health, medical questionnaire, reports from
specialists and medical tests when required. Group size, the nature of activity carried out by the group, geographic mix and
cultural background are all analysed.

The business is protected by extensive reinsurance cover with low retention which affords protection from adverse
experience, single large losses, multipie claims and concentrations of risk,

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding claims,
whether reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. The principal assumption underlying the liability
estimates is that the Company’s future claims development will follow a similar pattern to past claims development experience.
This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim inflation factors and claim numbers for
each accident year. Qualitative judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for
example: one-off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming, economic conditions: as well as
internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to assess the
extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legisiation affect the estimates. Considerable
judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under
insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based an assumptions about several factors involving varying and possibly
significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual resuits may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future
changes in estimated liabilities.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
reasonable estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with
certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a
separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical
evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is
available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims
already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation process takes into
account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The uitimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as
Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company's past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the development of
paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the ohserved development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business fines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either
by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future
development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead,
the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims development datz on which the projections are based.
Additional gualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, {e.g., to refiect one-
off occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as pubiic attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handiing
procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the likely outcome from the range of
possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties invalved,
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The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium fiability provisions (unearned premium reserve and
premium deficiency reserve) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the
unexpired policies as at the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and
assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable.

Sensitivity Analysis

The amount of the provision for outstanding claims, net including I1BNR is sensitive to the basis for making judgements and
estimates as outlined in Note 4(b). The net underwriting resuit set out in the statement of insurance operations will be directly
impacted by the amount that the provision for outstanding claims, net including IBNR is understated or overstated as 3 result of
this process,

The impact on net income which would resuit from an increase or decrease of 5% in net incurred claims with all other
assumptions held constant is shown below.

Net Incurred Claims % impact on Net income

increase / Decrease Change 2018 2017
Motor +5% {1,131} {4,613}
Medical +5% {12,795) {7,988}
Property and Casualty +5% {156} {231}
Protection and Savings +5% (130} {53}
Total {14,212} {12,925}
Motar -5% 1,131 4,613
Medical 5% 12,795 7,988
Property and Casualty -5% 156 231
Protection and Savings 5% 130 a3
Total 14,212 12,925

b} Reinsurance risk

The Company effects reinsurance with other parties in the normal course of business in arder to minimise its financial exposure
to potential losses arising from large insurance claims. The reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss
reinsurance contracts.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its
reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using parameters such as minimum acceptable credit rating, reputation and past performance, Local
companies who do not carry a formal credit rating are accepted to a limited degree provided they are registered with and
approved by local Regulators.

Aithough the Company has reinsurance arrangements it is not refieved of its direct obligations to its policyhoiders in the event
that a reinsurer failed to meet its obligations.

c} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss.

The maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk if a default was made by the counter party is equal to the carrying
amount of these financial instruments.

The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to customers by constant monitoring of outstanding receivabies.

The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by, on a sslactive basis, setting credit iimits,
maintenance of cash deposits with the Company and monitoring of outstanding receivables.

=
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The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to bank time deposits by only dealing with reputable banks and by generaily
placing deposits for periods of not more than twelve months.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the parties with whom reinsurance is effected are
required to have a minimum acceptable security rating level affirming their financial strength.

The amounts due from reinsurers are contractually due within @ maximum sixty days from end of quarter in which the payment
is made for claims under treaty reinsurance and treaty retention excess of loss reinsurance and ninety days for claims under
facultative reinsurance.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the statement of financial position:

2018 2017
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — gross 85,287 48,552
Due from related parties 75,074 5,282
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 71,391 58,958
Total 231,752 112,792

d} Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the vatue of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company primarily transacts in Saudi Rivals and at any time balances held in other currencies are of immaterial amounts
only and therefore the Company believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations.

&) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the fair values of
financial instruments.

Deposits are generally placed for periods not exceeding twelve months.
Anincrease or decrease of 1% in interest yields would impact profits by 4,838 {2017: 5,340).

The commission and non-commission bearing deposits and investments of the Company and their maturities as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Non-commissien bearing Total
insurance Operations
2018 308,096 0 0 308,096
2017 362,223 0 0 362,223
Shareholders’ Operations
2018 175,689 0 148,500 374,585
2017 171,789 0 140,728 312,517

f} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its commitments assoctated with financial liabilities when
they fall due.

Liguidity requirements are monitored on a monthiy basis and the Company has ensured that sufficient liquid funds are available
to meet any commitments as they arise.
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g) Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements in Saudi Arabia. Such regulations not only prescribe
approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions e.g. capital adequacy to minimise the risk of
default and insolvency on the part of insurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen lahilities as they arise,

h} Geographical concentration of risks
The Company’s insurance policies primarily relate to risks covered in Saudi Arabia,
i} Investment market price risks

Investment market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Company's investments amounting to 198,901 (2017: 140,728) are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty
about the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio
and by actively manitoring the developments in markets.

The impact of hypothetical change of a 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of fnvestments on Company's
profit would be as foHows:

Fair value % change Effect on Company's profit
31 December 2018 - 10% {19,890}
31 December 2018 +10% 19,890
31 December 2017 - 10% {14,073)
31 Becember 2017 +10% 14,073

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assets of future
movements in the value of investments held by the Company.

j}  Other Operational Risks

Operationat risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externaily at the
Company’s service providers and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks {already noted above) such
as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of behavior.

Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance fimiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation
with achieving its objective of generating returns for investors and security for policyhoiders.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controis over operational risk rests with the Board of
Directors who encompass controls in the following areas:

¢ Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

¢  Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of iransactions;

* Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

Documentation of controls and procedures;

Ethical and business standards;

Risk mitigation policies and procedures; and

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of controls and procedures to
address the risks identified.

¢ @ o o

Senior Management ensures that the Company's staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective
communication refated to operational risk management,
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33. MATURITY PROFILE

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial Ifabilities of the Company based on
remaining expected undiscounted contractual obligations.

The following assets and fiabilities in the statement of financial position are exciuded from the table below either because
they are classified as non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities or because they are net represented by underlying
contractual obligations — unearned gross premiums, reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums, deferred costs, property,
equipment and intangible assets, net, goodwill, unearned reinsurance commission, premium deficiency reserve, other
technical reserves and policyholders’ surplus distribution payable,

Items subject to notice are treated as if notice were given immediately.

Upto More than

one year one year Total

2018

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 430,566 430,566
Short term fixed income deposits 81,234 81,234
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable - net 78,587 78,587
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 71,391 71,391
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims incurred but not reported 81,748 81,748
investments 188,501 198,501
Due from related parties - net 63,674 63,674
Prepaid expenses and other assets 37,333 37,333
Statutory deposit 0 30,000 30,000
Accrued income on statutory deposit 0 2,003 2,003
Total 1,043,434 32,003 1,075,437

Financial Liabilities

Accrued and other liabilities 48,807 48,807
Reinsurers® balances payable 10,760 10,760
Cutstanding gross claims 173,565 173,569
Gross claims incurred but not reported 194,280 194,280
Due to related parties 17,058 17,098
Accounts payable 8,701 8,701
Withholding tax provision 12,227 12,227
Regulators’ levies provision 1,470 1,470
End-of-service indemnities 0 5,001 9,001
Zakat 26,511 26,511
Income tax 1,568 1,969
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 0 2,003 2,003
Total 495,392 131,004 506,396
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Upto Moaore than

one year one year Total
2017
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 548,956 549,556
Short term fixed income deposits v G
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net 38,052 38,052
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 58,958 58,958
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims incurred but not reported 73,786 73,756
Investments 140,728 140,728
Due from related parties — net 4,282 4,282
Prepaid expenses and other assets 9,166 5,166
Statutory deposit 0 20,000 20,000
Accrued income on statutory deposit 0 1,563 1,563
Total 874,938 21,563 896,501
Financial Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 52,048 52,049
Reinsurers’ balances payable 6,026 6,026
Outstanding gross claims 104,731 104,731
Gross claims incurred but not reported 179,883 179,883
Due to related parties 11,168 11,168
Accounts payable 11,949 11,549
Withholding tax provision 12,503 12,503
Regulators’ levies provision 1,048 1,048
End-of-service indemnities 8,441 8,441
Zakat 21,060 21,060
Income tax 3,205 3,205
Accrued eommission income payable to SAMA 0 1,563 1,563
Total 412,063 1,563 413,626
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34. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At 31 December 2018 Letters of Guarantee were outstanding in favour of various beneficiaries as follows:

2018 2017
Medical provider 1,000 250
Motor agents 0 500
Group medical insurance policy — Request for proposal 1,305 1,666
Capital commitments for systems software 1,429 o
Total 3,734 2,416

The Company is subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2018 there were no other commitments, contingencies or outstanding legal proceedings or disputes of a
material nature.

35. MOTOR UNDERWRITING SUSPENSION

With effect from 08 January 2017 the Company was suspended by the Regulator from writing new motor policies pending the
strengthening of some internal processes and systems. The Company carried out a review, implemented corrective actions,
reported details of the work undertaken and the suspension was lifted with effect from 09 March 2017.

With effect from 20 August 2017 the Company was suspended by the Regulator from writing motor third party policies
pending the strengthening of internal audit and compliance department functions. The Company carried out a review and
submitted to the Regulator a detailed plan, approved by the Board of Directors to deal with the issues raised and the
suspension was lifted with effect from 30 November 2017.

36. DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
All numbers in this note are stated in Saudi Riyal whole numbers and are not rounded to thousands,

A dividend amounting to SAR 40,000,000 (SAR 2 per share) was approved at the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 30
March 2017 for payment to shareholders registered on that date. The dividend was paid on 16 April 2017. No dividend was
approved or paid during 2018.

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain prior year amounts or balances may have been reciassified to conform te the current year's presentation,

38. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2019.
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39. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

2018

2017

insurance Shareholders’

insurance  Sharehalders'

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION Operations  Operations Total Operations  Operations Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 253,385 177,181 430,566 377,418 172,538 548,956
Short term fixed income deposits 81,234 o 81,234 0] 0 0
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable — net 78,587 0 78,587 38,052 0 38,052
Reinsurers’ share of unearned gross premiums 33,389 0 33,389 40,626 o] 40,626
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 71,391 0 71,391 58,958 0 58,958
Reinsurers’ share of gross cdaims incurred but not reported 81,748 0 81,748 73,796 a 73,796
Deferred policy acquisition costs 7,367 0 7,307 8,044 0 8,044
Deferred withholding tax 1,584 0 1,584 1,938 0 1,938
Deferred regulators’ levies 2,829 0 2,825 1,605 G 1,605
Deferred excess of loss expences 0 o o v 0 0
investments 0 198,901 198,901 0 140,728 140,728
Due from insurance operations 0 2,654 2,654 0] 50,711 50,711
Due from related parties —nat 63,674 0 63,674 4,282 ¥ 4,282
Prepaid expenses and other assets 34,212 3,121 37,333 8,080 1,086 9,166
Property and equipment —net 4,595 0 4,555 4,075 0 4075
Intangible assets— net 7,557 0 7,557 2,501 0 2,501
Goodwilt G 46,794 45,794 0 46,794 46,794
Statutory deposit 0 30,000 30,000 G 20,000 20,000
Accrued income on statutory depaosit 4] 2,003 2,003 g 1,563 1,563
TOTAL ASSETS 721,492 460,654 1,182,146 619,375 433,420 1,052,755
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2018 2017

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION {Continued) insurance - Shareholders’ Insurance  Shareholders’

Operations  Operations Operations  Operations
LIABILITIES
Accrued and other liabilities 46,321 2,486 48807 43,244 2,805 52,049
Reinsurers' balances payable 10,760 o 10,760 6,026 0 6,026
Urearmned gross premiums 221,042 0 221,042 155,564 0] 155,564
Uneamed reinsurance commission 6,847 4] 6,847 7,987 0 7,987
Outstanding gross claims 173,569 0 173,569 104,731 o 104,731
Gross daims incurred but not reported 194,280 G 194,280 179,883 v 179,883
Premium deficiency reserve 4,900 G 4,800 0] 0 ¢
Other technical reserves 9,925 0 9,925 8,125 0 8,125
Due to shareholders’ operations 2,654 0 2,654 50,711 0 50,711
Dueto related parties 17,008 0] 17,098 11,168 8] 11,168
Accounts payable 8,701 0 8,701 11,949 0 11,849
Withholding tax provision 12,227 ¢ 12,227 12,503 0 12,503
Regulators’ levies provision 1,470 g 1,470 1,048 0 1,048
End-ofservice indemnities 9,001 0 9,001 8,441 0 B441
Policyholders’ surplus distribution payable 2,697 0 2,697 11,995 4] 11,995
Zakat 0 26,511 26,511 4] 21,060 21,060
Income tax 0 1,969 1,869 0 3,205 3,205
Accrued commission income payable to SAMA 0 2,003 2,003 0 1,563 1,563
TOTAL LABILITIES 721,492 32,969 754,461 019,375 28,633 648,008
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUATY
Share capital 0 300,000 300,000 0 200000 200,000
Statutory reserve 0 33,082 33,082 0 48,573 48,573
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) 0 92,327 92,327 0 154,203 154,293
Fair value reserve gain / {Joss) on investmenits 8] 2,276 2,276 0 1,921 1521
TOTAL EQUITY 0 427,685 427,685 a 404,787 404,787
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 721,492 460,654 1,182,146 619,375 433,420 1,052,795
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2018

2017

Insurance  Shareholders'

insurance  Shareholders'

STATEMENTS OF INCOME Operations  Operations Total Operations  Operations Total
REVENUES

Gross premiums written 625,101 0 625,101 593,078 0 593,078
Reinsurance premiums ceded ~local {17,491} v (17,491} {11,630} 0 {11,630}
Reinsurance premiums ceded — foreign {152,814) 0 {152,814} {185,077) 0 [(185077)
Excess of loss expenses {2,230} o {2,230) {2,103) 0 {2,103}
Net premiums written 452,566 1] 452,566 394,268 0 354,268
Change in unearmed gross prermiums (65,478} ", (65,478} 123,307 ; 123,307
Change in reinsurers’ share of uneamed gross premiums {7,237 0 {7,237) (56,521) 0 {56,521}
Net premiums eamed 379,851 0 374,851 461,054 0 461,054
Reinsurance commissions 36,838 4] 36,838 50,687 4] 50,687
Other underwriting income 6,326 v 6,326 4,996 ¢ 4,996
TOTAL REVENUES 423,015 0 423,015 516,737 0 516,737
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Gross claims paid {304,597) 0 {304,557) {369,249) 4] {369,245)
Expenses incurred related to claims (o} 0 (0) (0} W] {C}
Reinsurers’ share of gross daims paid 83,212 0 83,212 123,075 0 123,075
et claims paid {221,385} 0 {221,385) {246,1749) 0 {246,174}
Changes in outstanding gross claims (68,838) 0 (68,838) (10,853) 0 {10,853}
Changes in reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims 12,433 0 12,433 {1,331} 0] {1,331)
Changes in gross IBNR {14,397) o (14,397) {16,966) o {16,966}
Changes in reinsurers’ share of gross IBNR 7,852 #] 7,852 16,815 0 16,815
Net claims incurred {284,235) 0 (284,235} (258,509} 0 (258,509)
Premium deficiency reserve {4,500} 0 {4,900) (0 0 {0}
Other technical reserves (1,800) o] {1,800) G} o (0}
Policy acquisition costs {22,501} &) (22,501} {37,637} 0 {37,637)
Withholding tax {7,866) ¢ (7,866} {13,149) 0 (13,148)
Regulators’ levies {5,890) 0 {5,850) {6,556} 0 {6,556}
Other underwriting expenses (6,572} 0 (6,572) (8,155} G {8,155}
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES {333,764) 1] {333,764} {324,006} 0 {324,006)
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME / {LOSS) 89,251 0 89,251 192,731 0 192,731
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2018 2017
[ i
STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Continued) Insurance  Shareholders’ Insurance - Shareholders'
Operations  Operations Operations Operations
OTHER OPERATING INCOME / {EXPENSES)
(Allowance for} / Reversal of doubtful debts {6,600) 0 (6,600 {4,000} 0 {4,000}
General and administrative expenses {59,288) (2,178}  {51,466) {69,442 {4,016) (73,458}
Depreciation and amortization (3,426} Y {3,426} {6,280} 0 (6,280}
Commission income on depaosits 7,028 4,324 11,352 6,938 2,408 8,346
Dividend investment income 0 6,399 6,399 ¥ 1,564 1,564
Realized gain / (loss) on investments 0 1,479 1,479 0 267 267
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING INCOME / {EXPENSES) (62,286} 10,024 {52,262} {72,784) 223 (72,561)
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM INSURANCE OPERATIONS 26,965 10,024 36,989 115,947 223 120,170
Absorption of deficit by / transfer of surplus to Sharehoiders (24,268) 24,268 0 (107,852} 107,952 0
NET RESULT FROM INSURANCE OPERATIONS AFTER ABSORPTION
OF DERICIT BY / TRANSFER OF SURPLUS TO SHAREHOLDERS 2697 33,292 35989 11995 108175 120170
Earnings per share (Expressed in SAR per share}
Basic and diluted earnings per share 114 361
2018 2017
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Insurance - Shareholders’ Insurance - Shareholders'
Operations  Operations Operations  Operations
Net surplus / (deficit} from insurance operations 2,697 34,292 36,989 11,995 108175 1280170
Other comprehensive income / {loss)
ftems that are or may be reclassified to statement of
income in subsequent years
Available for sale investments:
Net change in fair value 0 1,834 1,834 0 2,188 2,188
Net realised amounts transferred to statement of income 0 {1,479) {1,479) 0 {267} {267)
Net change in unrealised fair value 0 355 355 0 1,821 1521
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / {LOSS] FOR THE YEAR 2,697 34,647 37,394 11,995 110,096 122,091
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2018 2017

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS !nsurar'me Shareho!ders’ Total insuraf:ce Sharehofders' Total

Operations  Operations Operations  Operations
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit / {lass} for the year 2,697 34,292 36,989 11,995 108,175 120,170
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 2,015 g 2,015 1,853 0] 1,853
Amortization of intangible assets 1411 0 1411 4,426 0 4,426
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment {36} 0 (36} {41} 0 {41}
Allowance for / {Reversal of) doubtful debts 6,600 0 6,600 4,000 0 4,000
Provisions for withholding tax 7,512 0 7,512 10,359 o 10,359
Provisions for regulatory levies 7,114 0 7,114 5871 0 5,871
Provision for end-of-service indemnities 2,891 0 2891 3,679 0 3,679
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable (36,735) o {36,735) {16,147) 4] (16,147)
Reinsurers’ share of gross uneamed premiums 7,237 0 7,237 56,521 4] 56,521
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding gross claims {12,433) 0 {12,433) 1,331 g 1,331
Reinsurers’ share of gross daims incurred but not reported {7,852} 0 (7,952 (16,815) 0 {16,815}
Deferred policy acquisition costs 737 4] 737 10,579 0 16,579
Deferred withholding tax 354 ¢ 354 2,790 G 2,790
Deferred regulators’ levies {(1,224) 0 {1,224} 685 g 685
Deferred excess of loss expenses 0 0 0 o 0 0
Due from refated parties {69,792} 8] {69,792) (2,575} o {2,575)
Prepaid expenses and other assets {26,132) {2,035} {28,187} (354) {114) {468)
Accounts payable {6,346) 0 {6,346) {1,450) ", (1,450}
Policy acquisition cost payable 3,098 0 3,098 332 0 332
Accrued and other liabilities {2,923} (319) (3,242} 16,285 1,085 17,370
Reinsurers’ balances payable 4,734 G 4,734 (11,483} 0 (11,493)
Unearned gross prermiums 65,478 o 65,478 {123,307) 4] {123,307}
Unearned reinsurance commission {1,140) 0 (1,140) {10,868} 0 {10,858}
Outstanding gross claims 68,838 0 68,838 10,853 0 10,853
Gross claims incurred hut not reported 14,397 0 14,397 16,966 o] 16,966
Premium deficiency reserve 4,800 0 4,900 0 o 0
Other technical reserves 1,800 0] 1,800 0 0 ¢
Due to sharehalders’ operations {48,057) 48,057 0 9,966 {9,966} 0
Due to related parties 5,930 D 5,930 779 0 775
Payments:
End-of-service indemnities paid {2,331) 0 (2,331) (1,836) 0 {1,836}
Withholding tax paid (7,788) 0 (7,788) (11,507) 0 {11,507
Regulators’ levies paid {6,692} 0 (6,692) {6,402} 0 {6,402)
Surplus paid to policyhoiders {11,995} & {11,395} (12,231} o] {11,231}
Zakat paid 0 {5,509) {5,509) 0 (6,612} (6,612)
Income tax paid 0 (2,025} {2,025) 0 (1,412} {1,412}
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities {33,833} 72,461 38,628 {44,756) 91,156 46,400




ARABIAN SHIELD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY

ALL AMOUNTS IN SAR ‘000

2018

2017

insurance  Shareholders’

Insurance  Shareholders'

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS {Continued) Operations  Operations Total Operations  Operations Total
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions of investments 0 {190,005) {190,005} 0 {47,735) (47,795}
Proceeds from disposal of investments 0 133,666 133,666 0 10,020 10,020
Realised gain on disposal of investments D {1,479} {1,479} 0 (267} (267}
Additions of short term fixed income deposits {81,234} 0 (81,234) o 0 G
Additions of property and equipment {2,551} 0 (2,551} {2,820} 0 {2,820}
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 52 0 52 a4 0] 44
Additions of intangible assets {6,467} o (6,467} (2,488) 0 {2,488)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets o 0 0 o o G
Increase in statutory deposit 0; {10,000) {10,000) v; 0 i
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities {90,200} (67,818)  (158,018) {5,264} (38,042) {43,3086)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid 0 0 {40,000 {40,000)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 0 0 o {40,000} {40,000}
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (124,033} 4,643 {118,300) {50,020} 13,114 {36,908)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 377,418 172,538 549,956 427,438 159,424 586,862
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 253,385 177,181 430,566 377,418 172,538 549,956
NON-CASH INFORMATION
Change in fair value of investments 0 355 355 1] 1921 1,921
Bonus shares issued o 100,600 100,000 0 3 ;

&6



